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Annual Report & Accounts
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The Group's principal business is the development,
production and supply of hobby and toy products. The
Group distributes its products through a network of
specialist and multiple retailers throughout the UK and

overseads.
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Financial Highlights

» Revenue down by 1% to £63 4m
* Underlying operating profit down 20% to £5 2m

» Undertying profit before taxation down 23% to £4 4m

Net debt up from £3 2Zmto £6 Tm

Final dividend per share 5 Op

2011 % 2010

£'000 £'000
Revenue 63,372 (1%) 63,863
Underlying”
Operating profit 5,185 {20%} 6,497
Profit before taxation 4,423 (23%) 5,708
Profit after taxation 3,176 (23%) 4,151
Basic earnings per share 83 (24%) 110
Reported
Operating profit 4,891 (19%) 6,004
Profit before taxation 4,129 (21%) 5,215
Profit after taxation 2,855 (23%;) 3,685
Basic earnings per share (pence) 7.5 (23%) 98
Net debt 6,082 93% 3,154
Total dvidend per share (pence) 50 0% 50

* Underlying figures are before amortisation of intangibles and nel foreign exchange adjustments on intercompany loans
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Chairman's Statement

We have continued to develop strategies for our brands
and have signed a number of new high profile licences We
expect these new licences to perform strongly from 2012
and beyond The Group 1s well positioned to deliver growth

across our product range

Overview

This has been a very important year

for Hornby We have now established

the platform from which we can drive
significant growth Whilst demand for our
products has remained strong across all
our major markets, supply chain issues
have constrained our sales We have taken
steps with our largest suppher and with
new suppliers to address this issue which
has resulted inimprovement i supplies
in recent months We have continued

to develop strategies for our brands and
have signed a number of new high profile
icences We expect these new licences to
perform strongly from 2012 and beyond
The Group s well positioned to deliver
growth across our product range

Business performance

The result for the year was impacted
negatively by two factors Firstly our largest
supplter in China falled to meet our product
supply requirements, primanly as a result
of implementing an Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP) system during the early part
of our financial year, causing substantial
short term disruption to our supplies
Whlst supplies improved during the year,
it was not possible to recover the backlog
Supplies to our European subsidiaries were
particularly badly affected We are very
conscious of the fact that shortcomings

in our supply chain have held back the
Group's progress for a number of years
Our products are complex to manufacture
and require speciabst skills Throughout
this extended period we have been
working closely with our largest supplier
and others to improve performance and

at the same time to diversty our supply
base We have also engaged additional
staff in Hong Kong/China to assist with
production planning and to help ensure
that our requirements are met Over

recent months our largest supplier has
been manufacturing at the level we now
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require and, with additional supplers
coming on stream, we do not expect such
supply shortages to constrain sales in the
forthcoming financial year Secondly, the
unusually harsh weather across the UK in
December resulted in sales activity over
the most smportant period of the year
being severely reduced Whilst there i1s no
guarantee that this will not happen agam,
it was a particularly unusual occurrence
and therefore less lkely to recur this year
The Board s pleased that demand for the
Group's products remains strong and this
coupled with the opportunity represented
by our commercial association with the
London 2012 Olympics gives the Board
significant confidence for the future

Results

As noted above sales were constrained
by supply chain shortages in our largest
supplier in China Overall sales at £63 4
mithion were 1% below the previous year
(2010 - £639 million as restated)

The first half sales increase of 2% was
not marmtained in the second half as a
result of supply shortages and the poor
pre-Christmas sales performance caused
by adverse weather This also had the
effect, particularly in the UK, of reducing
restocking orders in the early part of 201

Pre-tax profit before amortisation of
intangibles and net foreign exchange
adjustrments on intercompany loans
(hereafter referred to as underlying pre-tax
profits) was £4 4 mullion (2010 - £57
million) (see note 1) Basic earmings per
share calculated on underlying pre-tax
profit (hereafter referred to as underlying
basic earnings per share) were 8 34p
(2010 -1099p) Statutory pre-tax profil
was £4 Tmiflion (2010 - £5 2 million)} and
statutory basic earnings per share were

7 50p (2010 - 9 76p)



Great British Classic Routemaster

One of the effects of the reduction in pre-
and post-Christmas sales in the UK was to
increase stock levels at the year end This,
and the payment of dividends during the
year, resulted in an increase in net debt Net
debt as at 31 March 2011 was £61 mitlion
(2010 - £3 2 million)

Dividend

The board recognises that performance

in the year to 31 March 2011 was affected
adversely by external factors that are
unlikely to be repeated this year The Board
15 therefore pleased to recommend that the
total dwidend for the year be maintaned at
5 Op per ordinary share (2010 - 50p) An
intenim dividend of 1 7p has already been
pand, so the final dividend of 2 3p will be
paid on 19 August 2011 to shareholders on
the register at 15 July 201

QOver the past years the phasing of the
Group's sales has become progressively
more weighted towards the October to
December period This trend 1s expected
to continue, with a consequential effect

on the Group’s peak working capital
requirernent, which occurs in the August to
Novernber period The Board has therefore
reviewed the timing of dividend payments
for future years and proposes, for 2012 and
subsequent years, to reschedule the timing
of the final dividend payment to December
of each year

Banking Facihities

The Group continues to have access to
secured banking facilities of £20 0 mullion
in the UK These facilities comprise 2 £10 0
million amortising Term Loan which expires
in July 2014 and a £10 0 million Secured
Money Market Loan with an unexpired
term of over one year Borrowings in the
year ended 31 March 2011 peaked at £14 6
million The Group remamed comfortably
within all of its covenants during the year

Product Development

Our product development programme
continues to be a key driver of our business
We continue to increase our resources

In thus area in order to cope with the
additional demands of our subsicharies and
the increase in product categones

Outlook

Despite the frustrations caused by supply
delays, the Group has continued to exploit
the synergies arising from its strong brand
portfolio In particular our prominent
position has resulted in further high profite
hcences being secured We will shortly
launch Scalextric products based on the
forthcoming Disney/Pixar movie “Cars 2°
We have also achieved a major coup In
securing worldwide Slot-racing rights to the
Star Wors movie franchise Beginning with
the theatrical release of Star Wars Episode
I The Phantom Menace in 2012, Lucasfilm
will convert the series of six Star Wars
movies into 3D format We believe that our
association with this powerful franchise will
drive incremental Scalextric sales for many
years to come, particularly in the USA

QOur London 2012 product sales

are gathering momentum and we

are increasingly convinced that our
involvement with this once in a hfetime
opportumity will have long term benefits
n respect of distribution and product
category diversification

We look forward with anticipation and
confidence to the new financial year and
beyond

Finally, | would hke to thank our Chief
Executive Frank Martin and through him, all
our stalf, for their continuing commitment
to growing the business, and ensuring that
future return to shareholders i1s maxmised

Neil Johnson
Chairman
3 June 20N
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Chief Executive's Report

The Group's prnincipal business 1s the development,
production and supply of hobby and toy products The
Group distributes 1ts products through a network of
specialist and multiple retailers throughout the UK and
overseas The Group markets its products under a number
of brands well known in their respective markets These
brands include Hornby, Scalextric, Electrotren, Lima, Jouef,
Rivarossi, Arnold, Airfix, Humbrol and Corgi

Fmancial Review

Consolidated revenue for the year ended
31 March 201 was £63 4 milhon, a
reduction of 1% compared to the previous
year's £63 9 midlion (as restated)

20m 2010
Reported gross profit
margin 46 2% 490%
Adjusted gross profit
margin 46 2% 47 4%
Undertying profit before
tax margin® 70% 89%
Reported profit before tax
margin 65% 82%
Underlying basic earnings
per share” 834p 1089
Statutory basic sarmngs
per share 7 50p 976p
Net debt £61m £32m

Stated before amortisation of intangibles and net
foreign exchange adjustments on intercompany
loans
Full year gross profit margin was 46 2%
(2010 - 49 0%), which does not take
into account the impact of margin related
hedged foreign exchange transaction gains
and losses that are required to be reported
within operating income / expense
The adjusted gross profit margin after
incorporating net exchange losses was
46 2% (2010 - 47 4%) The reductionin
adjusted gross profit margin was primarily
a result of changes in the product mix
of sales We continued to suffer supply
shortages in our higher margin collectable
model rallway categones, particularly in
International markets, whereas supphes of
lower margin mode! railway sets were less
disrupted Underlying profit before tax” at
£4 4 milhon was below 2010 (£5 7mullion)
due primarnily to the lower gross profit
margin

Net debt at 31 March 2011 was £61
milhon compared with £3 2 million at
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31 March 2010 The increase of £2°9
million reflected the payment of a diwvidend
for the year ended 31 March 2010, which
was paid as a single sum in August 2010,
no interim dividend having been paid

and the payment of an interim divdend

in January 201 In addition, inventories
were higher at 31 March 2011 than a

year previously, mainky as a result of the
negative impact on sales caused by the
bad weather across Northern Europe
during December 2010 We expect these
inventories to be sold in the normal course
of business during the new financial year
without negative impact on margins

Hornby sources the majority of its
products in China and India, via third-
party contract manufacturers The Group
continued to expenence delays in supplies
from its largest suppher in China This
problem was mitigated, to some extent,
by significant volumes becoming available
from new suppliers of model ratlway
products However, the net effect was to
depress sales, particularly in our European
substdianies Throughout the year we
worked closely with our largest supplier
to improve performance | am pleased to
report that since the beginming of March
201 production volumes in our largest
supplier have been in line with our average
monthly requirement for the new financial
year Thistime last year, our largest
supplier had just entered a penod of
disruption caused by the implementation
of a new ERP system This system s

now functioning satisfactonly and we

are pleased with the volumes currently
being manufactured At the same time
our alternative sources have increased
capacity and we therefore do not expect
sales in the new financial year to be
constramed by supply chain issues We




INER Class A1 4-6-2 Flying Scotsman Locomotive
{NER Composite and broke coaches

continue to work closely with our largest
supplhier and expect that this relationship
will continue to the benefit of both parties,
for many years to come

All purchases from our Chinese suppliers
are either in US or Hong Kong Dollars It

15 the Group's pohicy to enter into forward
currency contracts in anticipation of
purchases for up to 12 months in the
future The Group retains intellectual
property rights in its products and controls
all sales of its products

United Kingdom

Heavy snow over two of the most
tmportant pre-Christmas trading
weekends in December 2010 impacted
negalively across all UK distribution
channels Sales lost during this period

of disruption were not recovered prior

to Chnistmas and our retailers were left
with higher than usual stocks entering
the New Year The effect of this has been
to reduce sales during the final quarter

of the financial year, resulting in full-year
sales n our UK subsidiary being just 4%
above the previous year at £47 3 millien
{2010 - £45 6 million), whereas at the
half-year sales were up by 12% Agamst
this difficult background, underlying profit
before tax fell to £4 5 million compared Lo
£4 8 milhon the previous year Reported
profit before tax was £4 3 million (2010 -
£4 4 million) This result includes export
sales to third parties of £6 Smullion (2010
- £57 mullion)

Sales via our independent retail channel
and our concessions were below the
previous year whilst sales via National
Accounts and our International
distributors showed encouraging growth
The good progress made with our larger

retail customers reflects a growing
recognition of the strength of our portfolio
of brands

Sales of Hornby model railways were
slightly lower than the previous year

due to supply chain delays and also the
effect of the weather-related disruption n
December and the consequent reduction
in re-ordering in the period January to
March We are expecting a healthy
growth in Hornby model rallway sales

in the new financial year, driven by a
number of exciting innovations In July
we expect first delivenes of our Tornado
locomotive, based on the new steam
locomotive of the same name currently
operating on the UK network Qur model
1s based on completely new tooling and
1s built to a high standard of authenticity
whilst achieving a mass market price
point We expect this introduction to
create a new market sector which is
attuned to the more challenging economic
conditions likely to be prevalent for some
time to come In Power and Control we
will commence deliveries in July of our
Rallmaster system This software links
the Hornby Elite digital controller to a PC
Railmaster enables the user to programme
his model railway layout to execute
complex sequential activities, controlling
locomotives, sound, lights, points and
other accessories We regard Railmaster
as setting the standard for a new era of
PC-based digital control Reactions from
our retailers and the hobbyist community
have been very positive

Sales of Scalextric were ahead of the
previous year, for the second year running
The newly introduced Scalextric Start
ranges performed strongly In addition
our Disney/Pixar "Toy Story 3" products
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Chief Executive's Report (continued)

performed particularly well For the

new financial year we have the nghts in
the UK and certain other terntones to
market Scalextric ranges based on the
new Disney/Pixar movie "Cars 2" due for
release in June 2011

For 2012 and beyond we are delighted

to have secured worldwide nghts to
produce Scalextric products based on

the most successful licence franchise of
all time “"Star Wars” From 2012 onwards
Lucasfilm will convert the full series of &
Stor Wars movies into 3D We expect that
our ranges of 132 Scalextric products,
based on the vehicles and spacecraft of
the Star Wars movies will become highly
collectable, particularly in the US market
This will help to build our presence In

the USA and lay the ground for future
growth In1 64 scale we expect our Micro
Scalextric Star Wars products to sell
strongly In mass market outlets around
the world

Sales of Airfix were once again
substantially abead of the previous

year as our new product introductions
gathered pace and we continued to rebuild
distribution worldwide We continue to
see great potential for future sales growth
in Aurfix and indeed in Humbrol We have
now repatnated to the UK manufacturing
of the iconic Humbrol enamels range We
see the potential to extend the reach of
this great paint brand whilst nurturing ts
current primary market of model makers
We shall be dnving additional product
development imitiatives in this respect
over the coming years

Corg sales were in line with the previous
year We have now closed the remote
Corgi office in Leicester and relevant
functions have been relocated to Margate
Woe see the integration of all functions in a
single location as being essential to realise
the avalable synergies and drive the
development and sales potential of this
great brand, in exactly the same way as
we have revitalised the Airfix business

The breadth and depth of our product
and brand portiolio i1s now creating a
tangible advantage over our competitors
Qur relationships with major retailers
and licensors have become stronger
and we are now seen as the partner of
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choice in our refevant sectors This has
enabled us to begin to extend our brand
and product franchise We have recently
been successful in secuning exclusive
worldwide Master Toy licence nghts

to a new children’s amimated TV series
“Olly the Little White Van” “Olly” will
commence transmission n June 2011 on
Children’s ITV 52 episodes are planned
and International sales of the TV series
are wellinhand We will launch our first
“Olly” ranges at toy fairs in the early

part of 2012, for delivery in the Spring of
that year The "Olly” ranges will cover
pre-school vehicles and playsets, Corg
die cast vehicles, Micro Scalextric and
Hornby sets and radio controlled vehicles
From our own observation and research
conducted into the "Olly" proposition we
are confident that this development will
help to underpin incremental sales growth
over the coming years

Continental Europe

Our subsidiaries in mainland Europe

all suffered significant sales shortfalls

as a result of the delivery delays we
expenenced with our fargest suppler
Sales via our European subsidiaries in total
were 13% below the previous year at £13 4
million (2010 - £15 5 mithon) Throughout
the year, demand in mainland Europe was
ahead of the previous year In the absence
of delivery delays, sales in our European
subsidharies in total would have been
substantially higher than the previous
year Our subsidiaries in mainland Europe
contnbuted an underlying loss before

tax of £42,000 on sales of £13 4 mullion,
compared with an underlying profit before
tax of £1 0 miflion 1n the previous year

on sales of £15 5 milhon Reported loss
before tax was £0 2 million (2010 - profit
£0 9 muthion) Qur European subsidiaries
suffered a reduction in gross margins due
to product mix Sates of lower margin
mass market model railway sets were

less affected by delivery delays than the
higher margin collectable model raldway
products The production of the mass
market sets was carned out by one of

our new model railway suppliers, and we
were pleased with the commitment this
supplier demonstrated in bringing these
products into production




Our strong European brands continue

to attract increasing support from the
model rallway communities i each of
our key territories Across Europe we
enter the new financial year with strong
order books As our main suppler 1s

now shipping volumes in ine with our
requirements we are confident that sales
in Europe will increase significantly in the
new financial year

America

Sales in Hornby America were lower

at $4 2 milhon (2010 - $4 4 million),
producing a loss before tax of $65,000
(2010 - loss $90,000) Upon translation
into Sterling, sales were £2 7 million
(2010 - £2 8 milhion) with a loss before
tax of £44 000 (2010 - loss £57,000)
However, Hornby Hobbies in the

UK benefitted from a gross margin
contribution of £397,000 (2010 -
£398,000) generated on sales made to
Hornby America, which has the effect
of increasing significantly the overall
contribution to Group profit of our US
operation Good progress was made
during the year in Hornby Amenca n
reducing working capital and overheads
The US business is now appropriately
sized and structured, and current
indications are for a more positive result
for the corming financial year

London 2012 Qlympic and Paralympic
Games

Product development of alt our 2012
London Olympic and Paralympic ranges
1s now complete, although only a small
part of the total range was availlable for
sale prior to 31 March 2011 However,
we are encouraged by current rates of
sale and indeed the fact that a significant
proportion of sales are being made
outside the London area This gives
confidence that as the countdown to
the Games continues, sales volumes will
build strongly across the whole of the
UK The Hornby Group 2012 range will
comprise some 150 indwidual products,
ranging m pnice from £4 99 for our
collectable London taxis to £69 99 for
the Scalextric Velodrome set and over
£200 for hmited edition Hornby tramn
sets The majority of these products are
purchased from suppliers in China with

whom we have not experenced supply
chamn problems The London 2012 Games
have already provided us with access to
new channels of distrtbution and we have
demonstrated that we have the ability

to produce a wide range of high-volume
products not previously featured within
our brand portfolio We are working hard
to maximise the short term opportunity
of the Games whilst ensuring that we
have product developments in progress
to maintain the momentum post-2012
across our distribution base, including
those channels opened as a result of our
involvement in London 2012

Outlook

In my report last year | said that we
expected to grow sales across the Group
Supply chain delays coupled with the
effects of the extreme weather conditions
on pre-Christmas trading, prevented this
from happening However demand for
our products remained strong i all our
major markets Qur largest supplier 1s now
shipping at the levels we require and our
new sources of model railway production
are also increasing their volume capacity
QOur primary objective for the coming year
will be to ensure that supplies continue
to flow at the rates we require to meet
consumer demand At the same time we
have an outstanding opportunity both in
the short and medium term as a result of
the London 2012 Games At the outset of
this project we said that it was difficult to
predict the "legacy” benefits that might
arise With a little over one year to go

ta the Games, we can now see that our
involvement with the Garmes will bring
lastmg benefits in terms of increased
distnbution, and an increased confidence
in our ability to stretch the scope of our
product offer This 1s an exciting time for
Hornby and notwithstanding continuing
economic pressures on the consumer we
look forward to the future with confidence

Frank Martin
3 June 201
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit thewr Annual Report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
20m

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company 1s a holding company registered n

England No 01547390 with a Spamish branch and has

six operating subsidharies Hornby Hobbies Limited in

the United Kingdom Hornby America In¢ in the USA,
Hornby Espafia S A in Spain, Hornby Italia s r | i Italy,
Hornby France S A'S in France and Hornby Deutschland
GmbH in Germany Hornby Plc 1s a public himited company
incorperated and operating in the United Kingdom Its
registered office 1s set out on page 8

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
design, sourcing and distribution of hobby and interactive
home entertainment products

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review Is included in the ‘Results’
section of the Chairman’s Statement and the ‘Financial
review’ section in the Chief Executive's Report

Future developments are included both in the ‘Outlook’
section of the Chairman’s Statement and the ‘Outlook’
sectton in the Chief Executive’s Report

The principal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group
are set out in the Corporate Governance Statement on
pages 1610 18

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set out

in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income on
page 29 Revenue for the year was £63 4 million compared
to £63 9 million (as restated} last year The profit for

the year attributable to equity holders amounted to £2 8
million (2010 - £3 7 millton) The position of the Group 1s
set out in the Group Balance Sheet on page 30

An intenm dividend was declared in the year of 17p per
ordinary share amounting to £0 7 milhon (2010 - No
intenm dividend was declared)

The directors recommend a final dividend of 3 3p (2010 -
5 Op) per ordinary share amounting to £13m (2010 - £19
million) payable on 19 August 2011 to those shareholders

on the Register at 15 July 201

This represents a total dividend paid in raspect of the year
ended 31 March 2011 of 5 Op per ordinary share (2010 -
5 Q0p)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPls)

The directiors are of the opinion that the KPls are revenues,
gross margins, underlying profit before tax earnings per
share and cash generation the information for which 1s
available in these financial statements and summarised
on the financial highlights section at the beginning of this
report The Group mantains a robust planning system
with individual targets for subsidianies i terms of growth
and profits The Board moritors progress against plan on
aregular basis adjusting future abjectives annually in hine
with current circumstances

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

The Board considers that research and development into
new products continues to play an important role inthe
Group’s success

All R&D costs incurred in the year have been charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and are as set out
in note 4

PROPERTY VALUES

In the opinion of the directors, and given current planning
use approvals, there 15 no significant difference between
the book amount and the current market value of interests
in land and buildings

Land and buitdings are valued according to the provisions
of 1AS 16's cost model Assets are carried at cost less
accurmnulated depreciation and impairment

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year the Group made donations of £21 250
(2010 - £20,200) for chantable purposes to include the
Theatre Royal Margate (£20,000) There were no political
donations in the year (2010 - £mi)

DIRECTORS
The persons who were directors during the year are hsted
below

Neidl A Johnson, aged 62, was ongmally appointed a
non-executive director on 1July 1998 On 22 December
2000 he assumed the responsibilities of Chairman He s

a member of the Metropolitan Police Authority He served
for five years as a member of the Prnime Miruster's Advisory
Panel for the Citizen's Charter and 1s currently a member of
a Minmistry of Defence Advisory Board He 1s a member of a
nurnber of private company Boards and Trusts, Chairman
of Motability Operations Group Plc and Chairman of
Umeco Plc
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Frank Martin, aged 59, was appointed Chief Executive
on 3 January 2001 Frank was previously Chief Executive
of Humbrol Limited, and formerly Managing Director of
Denby Pottery Limited and Group Marketing Director

of Hasbro (UKD Limited His conditions of employment
include a notice period of one year to be given by the
Company and of six months to be given by him

Andrew | Morris aged 48, was appointed Group Finance
Director on 26 November 2007 Andrew was previously

CFO of Speedo International and formerly Finance Director,

Africa Glaxo Smithkhne plc His conditions of employment
include a notice period of one year to be given by the
Company and of six months to be given by hurm

Nigel M Carrington, aged 55 was appomnted a non-
executive director on 1 December 2007 Nigel is currently
Rector of University of the Arts London and a member

of the board of a number of chanties He was formaerly

a carporate lawyer and Managing Partner at Baker &
McKenzie and Managing Director and Deputy Chairman of
McLaren Group Limited

Mark E Rolfe, aged 52, was appointed a non-executive
director on 1 lanuary 2008 After qualifying as a chartered
accountant with Coopers and Lybrand, Mark joined
Gallaher Group plc in 1986, where he was Finance Director
for seven years retinng in 2007 He 1s a non-executive
director of The Sage Group Plc, Barratt Developments

Plc and Debenhams Plc, and Chairman of Lane Clark &
Peacock LLP

The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company
and in options granted over such shares are disclosed in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 23 to 25

The number of Board meetings held during the year and
attendance by the directors 1s set out on page 13

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company mantains hability insurance for its directors
and officers The Company has also provided an indemnty
for its directors and the secretary, which is a qualifying
third party indemmity provision for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company has been notified that at close of business
an 27 May 2011 the following parties were nterested in
three per cent or more of the Company’s ordinary share
capital

Number of Percentage
Ordinary held
Shareholder Shares
Phoenix Asset Management
Partners Limited 4,037,573 1050
P J Wood 4,012,500 1043
Aberdeen Asset Management 3,150,096 819
Electra Quoted Partners 2,995,150 779
J J Hosking 1,711,434 4 45
Legal & General Investment
Management 1,310,585 341

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial instruments, other than dervatives,
comprise borrowings, some cash and liquid resources, and
various items, such as trade receivables, trade payables,
etc that anse directly from its operations The Group's
financial habihties comprise borrowings, trade payables,
other payables and finance leases, the main purpose of
which is to raise finance for the Group's operations The
Group also has financial assets compnising cash, trade and
other debtors

The Group also enters into derivatives transactions
{principally forward foreign currency contracts) The
purpose of such transactions 1s to manage the currency
nisks ansing from the Group’s operations The Group has
a FX collar in place to mimmise risk on translation of Euro
denominated intercompany loans

I 1s, and has been throughout the period under review,
the Group's policy that no speculative trading In financial
instruments shall be undertaken

PERSONNEL POLICIES

It 1s the policy of the Group to follow equal opportunity
employment practices and these include the full
constderation of employment prospects for the disabled

Apphcations for employment by disabled persons are
always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of
the applicant concerned It 1s the policy of the Group that
the training, career development and promotion of disabled
persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that

of other employees Arrangements are made, wherever
possible, for retraining employees who become disabled, to




enable them to perform work 1dentified as appropriate to
their aptitudes

The Group places importance on the contributions to be
made by all employees to the progress of the Group and
aims to keep them informed by the use of formal and
informal meetings

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

The Group has agreed a variety of payment terms with

s supplers It 1s and witl remain the general policy of the
Group that payments to a suppler are made in accordance
with the general conditions of purchase agreed with that
supplier, providing the supphier complies with all relevant
terms and conditions and also that the invoice 1s presented
in a timely fashion

The average creditor payment period for the main trading
subsichary at 31 March 2011 was 40 days (2010 - 42 days)
The Company itself does not trade and therefore has no
external trade payables

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

A resclution to re-appoint the auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The notice of Annual General Meeting 1s important and
requires your immediate attention If you are in any doubt
as to what action to take in relation to the Annual General
Meeting, you should consult approprniate independent
advisers

The notice of the Annual General Meeting is set out on
pages 62 to 65

Resolution 3

A final dividend can only be paid after the shareholders

at a general meeting have approved it A final dwidend of
3 3 pence per ordinary share of 1 pence each in the capital
in the Company 1s recommended by the direclors for
payment to shareholders who are on the register at the
close of business on 15 July 2011

Resoclution 10

Under section 551 of the Comparies Act 2006 (the 'Act’),
the directors may allot unissued shares only if authorised
to do so This resolution will give the directors authority to
1ssue new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £126,000, which

15 equal to approximately 33% of the Company’s 1ssued
ordinary capital as at 2 June 2011 (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of this notice)
This authonty will expire on 31 July 2016 The directors do
not have any present intention of exercising the authority
granted by this resolution except in connection with the
Company's share schemes However, it 1s considered
prudent to maintain the flexibiity that this avthority
provides

Under the guidelines of the Association of British insurers
on authority to allot shares companies may seek basic
authanty to allot new shares in an amount of up to one-
third of the existing issued share capital and this request
will be regarded as routine under guidehines

Resolution 11

It 1s proposed to renew the authority to the directors to
allot equity secunties for cash without first being required
to offer such securities to existing members This will
nclude the sale for cash on a non pre-emptive basis of
any shares which the Company holds in treasury The
authority will be hmited to the 1ssue of shares for cash up
to an aggregate norminal amount of £19,000 representing
approximately 5% of the 1ssued ardinary share capital of
the Company as at 2 June 2011 (bemng the latest practicable
date prior to the publication of this notice) The authornty
sought at the Annual General Meeting will expire at the
conclusion of the next annual general rmeeting of the
Company

The directors do not intend to 1ssue more than 7 5% of
the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company n any
rolling three year penod without prior consultation with
the Institutional Investment Committee Members will
note that this resolution also relates to the sale of treasury
shares

Resolution 12

The Company I1s seeking authonty to purchase up to
approximately 10% of the Company's issued ordinary
share capital at, or between, the minimum and maximum
prices specified in the resolutton As at 2 June 2011 (being
the latest practicable date prior to the publication of

this notice), the total number of options to subscribe for
shares in the Company was 1,547,500 (approximately

4 0% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital and
approximately 4 5% of the Company's 1ssued ordinary
share capital if the full authonty proposed by resolution 12
was used and the shares purchased were cancelled)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

This power would be used only after careful consideration
by the directors, having taken into account market
conditions prevailing at that time, the investment needs

of the Company, its opportunities for expansion and its
overall financial position The directors would exercise

the authonty to purchase ordinary shares only if they
considered it to be in the best interest of the members and
they beheve that the efiect of such purchases will be to
Ncrease earnings per share

The Company (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury
Shares) Regulations 2003 came into force on 1 December
2003 These regulations allow shares repurchased by the
Company to be held as treasury shares rather than being
cancelled Treasury shares may be cancelled, resold for
cash or used for the purpose of employee share schemes
but all nghts attaching to them, including voting nghts
and any rnight to receve dividends, are suspended whilst
they are held in treasury The authority to be sought by
this resolution 1s intended to apply equally to shares to be
held by the Company as treasury shares The Company
currently holds no treasury shares

The authornity sought at the Annual General Meeting will
expire at the earlier of the date which falls eighteen months
from the date the resolution s passed and the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company

Signed on behalf of the Board

Margate
Kent CT9 4JX

3 June 20M
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Company 1s committed to the principles of corporate
governance contained in the Combined Code of Corporate
Governance i1ssued in 2008 by the Financial Reporting
Council (‘the Code’) (which can be found at

www frc org uk) for which the Board is accountable to
shareholders

Statement of Compliance with the Combined Code
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company
has been in comphiance with the Code provisions set out in
section 1 of the Code

Statement about applying the principles of the Code
The Company has applied the principles set out in section
1 of the Code, including both the main principles and the
supporting principles Further explanation of how the
principles and supporting principles have been appted 15
set out below

The Company Is aware of the terms of the UK Corporate
Governance Code published in May 2010 which will apply
for the first time to the Company from 1 Apnil 2011 and 1s
taking appropniate steps to ensure comphance with that
code

DIRECTORS

Board effectiveness
The Board has ultimate responsibility and accountability for
the Group's aperations

During the year the Board compnised the non-executive
Charrman Chef Executive, Finance Director, and two non-
executive directors

During the year ten Board meetings were held All directors
attended all meetings during therr peniod of office

The Board believes its current structure 1s appropriate for
the scale of the business and to enable the Group to be
managed efficiently

The Board has adopted a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to i for decisions including the
deterrmunation of the strategy, the approval of business
plans, budgets, acquisitions and disposals, major capital
purchases, Board appointments, accounting policies and
treasury arrangements

The Board also delegates specific responsibilities to
committees as described below The Board meets monthly
and monitors progress agamst plan al each meeting

The directors have the authority of the Board to obtamn
external legal or other independent professional advice in
the furtherance of their duties at the Company’s expense
All directors have access to the advice and services of

the Company Secretary, who i1s responsible for ensuring
Board procedures are followed and applicable rules and
regulations are complied with The executive directors have
all recewved appropnate training for therr appointment to
the Board of a listed company The non-executive directors
bring a broad expertise to the Board N A Johnson,

N M Carnington and M E Rolfe are all experienced company
directors Biographical detalls of each director are shown
on pages 9 and 10

The Board has formal and informal procedures to monttor
its performance both as individuals and as a Board

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate
and there 1s a clear division of responsibility The Chairman
1s responsible for leading the Board and ensuning its
effectiveness The Chairman and the Board are satisfied
that effective communicatton, principally by the Chief
Executive and Group Finance Director, 1s undertaken with
the shareholders

The Chief Executive is responsible for running the business
and ensuring that accurate, timely and clear information is
presented at monthly Board meetings or when appropnate

Senior Independent Director

The Board has appointed N M Carrington to the role of
Sentor Independent Director This role provides a point
of contact to those shareholders who wish to raise issues
with the Board, other than through the Chairman

Board balance and independence

The Board considers the non-executive directors who
served during the year to be independent of management
and free from any business or other relationship which
could interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement Code provision A3 2 requires at least half
the Board, excluding the Chairman, to be independent
non-executive directors and smaller companies are only
required to have only two non-executive directors

N A Johnson has served on the Board for more than twelve
years and has been its Chairman for ten years In line with
the Combined Code the Senor Independent Director,

N M Carnington, has undertaken a rigorous review of the
effectiveness of the performance of the Chairman as well
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

as a review of his contnibutton to the Board, based on a
questionnaire and discussion with other members of the
Board, and has concluded that the Chairman continues
to be an eifective non-executive director and to execute
commitment to the role

Appointments to the Board

Nominations Committee

There have been no appeintments to the Board during the
year ended 31 March 2011 Appointments to the Board
require the Board's authorisation and are conducted by the
Nominations Committee The Nominations Committee
comprises the Charrman, executive and non-executive
directors Dunng the year there were no meetings held

The duties of the Nominations Committee are available
from the terms of reference and include regularly reviewing
the structure, size and composition required of the Board
and making recommendations to the Board with regard

to any changes, giving {ull consideration to succession
planning for directors and other senior executives,
wdentifying and nominating candidates to fill board
vacancies and evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board before an appointment 1s
made

The potential candidates are interviewed by either the
Nominations Commuttee or a panel appointed by that
Commuittee An appointment requires the final approval of
the Board prior to an offer being forwarded

The Board has reviewed the time required from non-
executve directors to assess whether it 1s sufficient to fulfil
their duties

Terms of reference of the Norminations Committee and
terms and conditions of appointment for non-executive
directors are avallable on request from the Company
Secretary

Information and professional development

The Chief Executive Is responsible for ensuning that
directors receive accurate, timely and clear information
Management has an obligation to provide such information
but directors should seek clanification or amplification
where necessary

The Chairman 1s responsible for ensuring that directors
continually update their skills and the knowledge and
farrubarity with the Company required to fulfil therr role
Resources are avallable on request to develop and update
the directors’ knowledge and capabilities
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Performance Evaluation

During the year a performance evaluation of the Board and
its committees has taken place by way of a performance
evaluation questionnawre The results of this questionnaire
were summarised i a report which was presented to the
Board

In the year under review the report identified no areas of
concern

Re-election

N A Johnson, having served for more than twelve years,
will retire and offer imself for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting and annually thereafter in accordance
with the Combined Code

The Company's Articles of Association currently

require one third of the directors to retire by rotation at
each Annual General Meeting Thereby F Martin and

N M Carnington offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting In accordance

with the Combined Code, the non-retiring directors have
conducted a review of F Martin and N M Carrington'’s
contribution to the Board and the Chairman can confirm
that they continue to be effective directors and to execute
commstment to the role

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises N M Carrnington
and M E Rolfe N M Carnington is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

The Commuttee met three times during the year with ali
members being present The Commuttee 1s responstble

{or establishing formal and transparent procedures for
determining policy on executive remuneration and advising
the Board on executive remuneration and in particular

jor ensuring that executive remuneration packages are
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate execulive directors
of the required quality whilst avotding paying more than
necessary It also endeavours to establish performance
related elements of remuneration which align the interests
of the directors with those of the shareholders No director
15 inveolved in deciding his own remuneration and the Board
itself determines the remuneration of the non-executive
directors

Further detail of directors’ remuneration 1s provided in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report




Audit Commuttee and Auditors

The Audit Committee compnses N M Carrington and

M E Rolfe M E Rolfe became Chairman of the Audit
Commuttee on 28 July 2008 Mark s a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and 1s considered by the Board to have recent and relevant
financial experience N M Carrington has a wide range of
business experience, which 1s evidenced by his biography
set out in the Directors’ Report

The Commuttee meets at least three times a year and the
Chairman, Chief Executive, Finance Director, Company
Secretary and other managers attend by mwvitation The
Group's Auditors attend meetings and have direct access
to the Commuittee

The Audit Committee's terms of reference mclude all
matters indicated by the Combined Code The terms of
reference are considered annually by the Audit Committee
and are then referred to the Board for approval

The main duties of the Committee, set out In its terms of
reference, are to

*  Make recommendations on the appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors and monitor thew
perfarmance

= Review the nature and scope of the work to be
performed by the external auditers, the results of their
audit work and management’s responses

*  Monitor the independence of the external auditors
and recommend policy for any non-audit services
they provide to ensure that their ndependence s not
compromised

«  Review and advise the Board on the Company's
interim and annual financial statements and related
announcements, ts accounting pohcies and on the
control and mitigation of its financial and business
risks

*  Rewview and advise the Board on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control environment, including
its procedures for detecting fraud and ‘whistle blowing’

Activity during the year

During the year, three Audit Comrmittee meetings were
held All members attended ali meetings durning therr penod
in office The Committee met privately with the external
auditors without executives present, and with the Finance
Director

The Committee reviewed the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements and related announcements
along with a report from the external auditors setting out
the findings from ther audit work

The Commuittee has adopted a specific policy on auditor
independence, setting out restrictions on specific non-
audit activitres such as bookkeeping, payroll services and
advocacy and procedures and authonity levels for audit
and non-audit fees The authority levels beyond which prnior
approval irom the Audit Committee i1s required are set as
11 for the audit/non audit fee ratio Hornby believes that

it receives particular benefit from the external audilors’
advice on potential acquisitions and the tax consequences
thereof, given its auditors’ detailed knowledge of the Group
The Board considers alternative providers if practical

and seeks confirmation pnor to engaging services that
independence will not be compromised The Commitiee
has reviewed the FRC guidance on audit committees
pubhshed in December 2010 and has reviewed its policies
accordingly to ensure comphance

In the current financial year the level of non audit fees was
well within the 11 ratio

To assess the effectiveness of the external auditors, the
Committee reviewed their fulhtment of the agreed audit
plan, the robustness and perceptiveneass of the auditors in
their handling of key accounting and audit judgements, the
content of therr letter to management on control matters
and adherence to service standards set out in Hornby's
Audit Charter policy There are no contractual restrictions
on the choice of the Committee as to external audit and,
having considered the services provided by the current
external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, their
independence and knowledge of the Group, the Committee
has recommended to the Board the reappointment of the
auditors at the Annual General Meeting in August 201

In reaching this decision the Committee has taken into
account the tenure of the auditors and considered whether
there should be a full tender process The Commuttee also
had regard to the likelthood of a withdrawal of the auditor
from the market

The Commuttee considers annually the need for an
internal audit function, but currently believes that this
Is not justified given the size, nature of the Group and a
programme of visits to Hornby locations carnied out by
sentor Group financial management

Arrangements exist for staff of the Group to raise concerns,
in confidence, about possible improprieties in matters
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

of financial reporting or other matters During the year a
Group wide code of conduct was published outlirung the
business standards to which all company personnel must
adhere The code of conduct further reinforced the existing
whistle-blowing policy and procedures

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board 1s responsible for the operation and
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management There 1s a continuous process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
the Group faces This process has been in place throughout
the year and comphes fully with the Turnbull guidance

The Board regularly reviews the effectiveneass of the
Group's system of internal controt The Board's monitoring
covers all controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management It 1s based
principally on reviewing reports from management to
consider whether significant nisks are identfied evaluated,
managed and controlled and whether any significant
weaknesses are prompily remedied and indicate a need for
more extensive monitoring

The internal control systems are designed to meet the
Group's particular needs and the nsks to whichit 1s
expased and by thewr nature can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss During the year, the Group continued to take
action to enhance these control systems, based upon

its own process improvement imtiatives and auditors’
recommendations

The Audit Committee reviews and reports to the Board on
the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal contro!
on an ongoing basis during the year and no significant
weaknesses have been identified
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Contral Environment

The Board has put 1n place an orgamisational structure
with clearly defined and understood lines of responsibility
and delegation of authority The Board promotes a strong
control environment with a strong ethical climate

RELATIONS WiTH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates regularly with its institutional
shareholders and encourages commurication with private
investors through the Annual General Meeting

N M Carrington 1s the senior independent non-executive
director The senior independent non-executive director
welcomes direct discussion with shareholders

The executive direclors update major shareholders at
institutional visits and analyst presentations immediately
after the interim and final announcements The Charrman
attends a selection oi these meetings The meetings
facihtate open discussion and direct face-to-face contact
and the views of shareholders are reported to the Board by
the Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board uses the Annual General Meeting as an occasion
for communication with its shareholders All proxy votes
are counted by the Company's registrars and the voting on
each resolution 1s made availabte to the meeting Directors
of the Company and the UK subsidiary attend the meeting
to respond to specific questions

IDENTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Board has the primary responsibility for identifying the
major risks facing the Group and developing appropriate
policies to manage those nsks The Board has completed a
risk assessment programme in order to 1dentify the major
risks and has reviewed and determined any rmitigating
actions required as set out below




Principal nisks and uncertainties

fusk Description Impact/Sensitivity Mitigation/Comment
UK market The UK market represents The Group s exposed to a The Board's strategy
dependence a significant part of Group downturn in the performance  continues to be to expand

revenue, 64% in 2011 (2010
- 63%)

of the brands in the UK as
weli as to a downtum i the
UK economy

overseas sales The
acquisitions of the brands
Aurfix, Humbrol, Corg,
Electrotren, Rivaross), Lima,
Jouef and Amold have
provided the Group with a
significant share of the model
rallway, model and die-

cast markets in continental
Europe, with the objective of
faciitating further growth

Market conditions

The Group's products are
sold in the man to its retail
customers The performance
of the market s affected by
the general economic climate
including overall consumer
and retailler confidence,
interest rates and the level of
unemployment

The Group performance
15 Impacted by the
global macro-economic
environment

In reviewing the future
forecasts for the business the
directors consider reasonable
changes in macro-economic
and associated market
condifions recognising the
potenhal for a negative
impact on the Group's
results The Group also has
credit Insurance In place to
mitigate against any specific
retall customer default

Exchange rates

The Group purchases goods
in Hong Kong dollars and

US dollars and sells in €
sterbng, Euros and US doltars
and 1s therefore exposed to
exchange rate fluctuations

Significant fluctuations in
exchange rates to which the
Group 18 exposed could have
a matenal adverse effect on
the Group's future resulis

The Greoup continues to
hedge short term exposures
by establishing forward
currency purchases using
fixed rate and participating
forward contracts up to
twelve months ahead

it s deemed impractical

to hedge exchange rate
movements beyond that
penod Transaction nsk

on intercompany loans 1s
managed through a foreign
exchange collar
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

Risk

Description

Impact/Sensttivity

Mitigation/Comment

Overseas Supplers

The Group purchases goods,
in the main, from third party
Chinese supplers due to the
significant cost advantage
when compared to products
manufactured i Europe The
prncipal supplier to the Group,
Sanda Kan, 1s owned by Kader
Holdings Company Limited a
Hong Kong based company
with interests m the model rall
sectors in Europe/US

The Group does not have
exclusive arrangements with
its suppliers and there 1s

a nsk that competition for
manufactunng capacity could
lead to delays in introducing
new products or sevicing
existing demand

Input cost escalation in China
could reduce or remove the
Group’s pricing advantage
and impact margins

The Group 1s continuing

to develop and diversify Iis
suppler portfolio, which
ncludes a supplier n
India, and through closely
monitonng production
through an increased
number of locally based
employees (who also ensure
the maintenance of qualty
standards})

Product comphance

The Group’s products are
subject to compliance with
toy safety legislation around
the world

Failure to comply could fead
to a product recall resulting
in damage to Company and
brand reputation along with
an adverse impact on the
Group’s results

Robust internal processes
and procedures, active
monrtonng of propesed
legislatton and involvement in
policy debate and lobbying of
the relevant authonties

Competition

The Group has competition in
the model railway, slot racing,
model kits, die cast and pant
markets

Loss of market share to
increased competifor actvity
would have a negative impact
on the Group’s results

In many of cur markets

the Group enjoys a strong
market position due {o the
continued development

of our brands Brands are
extremely important in the
model sector with market
entry costs being prohititive

Ligudity

Insufficient financing to mest
the needs of the business

Without the appropnate

level of financing it would be
increasmgly difficult to execute
the Group's business plans

The Group has a fixed term
loan agreement expinng in
July 2014 {£10 mullion at 31
March 2011) and a revolving
credit faclity (£10 miflon
expirng end July 2012) The
Group's policy on hquidity
nsk 15 to mamntain adequate
faciities to meet the future
needs of the business

Main control procedures

Management establishes control policies and procedures

In response to each of the key nsks identified Controf
procedures operate to ensure the integnity of the Group's
financial statements, designed to meet the Group’s
requirements and risks identified 1n each area of the business
Control procedures are documented where appropriate and
reviewed by management and the Board on an ongoing basis
to ensure control weaknesses are mitigated
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The Group operates a comprehensive annual planning

and budgeting system The annual plans and budgets are
approved by the Board The Board reviews the management
accounts at its monthly meetings and financial iorecasts
are updated monthly and quarterly Performance against
budgel 1s momtored and where any significant deviations
are dentified appropnate action is taken




Monttoring system used by the Board

The Board as a whole monstors the operation of the system
of internal control through management reviews of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control each year
The Board has adopted a schedule of matters which are
required to be brought to it for decision in order to ensure
that it maintains full and effective control over appropriate
strategic, financial, organisational and compliance 1ssues,
including procedures for seeking and obtaining approval for
major transactions and capiat purchases

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the system of
nternal controls on a continuous basts and considers it
appropriate for the size of the Group The review comprises
regular scrutiny of menthly accounts and reports prepared
by indwidual subsidiary companies The Board also
regularly reviews and formalises financial authority limits
throughout the Group

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Board considers the social, environmental and ethical
matters pertinent to the Group, and will review items

of significance where appropriate The nisk assessment
procedures in place are designed to highlight any key areas
of concern including health and safety considerations,
employee recruitment and retention and environmental
1ssues, with controls put in place as necessary

The Group Is pro-active in working with all suppliers to
ensure comphance with the International Council of Toy
Industries {ICTI) Code of Business Practices to include
chuld and forced labour, working conditions, hours of work,
pay, non-discnmination and health and safety Compliance
15 managed through an annual audit process

Environmental Responsibility

The Group believes that protection of the environment 1s
an ntegral part of good practice and that it satisfres itself
that all of its operations are conducted with reasonable
proper regard for the environment tis committed to
maintaining, and wherever possible improving, the quality
of this environment both for the people who work in the
Group, and for the wider community now and in the future
The Group seeks to make the most effective and efficient
use of all resources, encouraging all members of the Group
to develop an ecologically sound approach to their work

Going Concern

A review of Group business actiwvities and future outlook
are set out on pages 4 to 7 of the Chief Executive’s Report
The financial position of the Group, its ¢ash flows and
hquidity position are shown in the balance sheet, cash
flow statement and accompanying notes to the financial
statements The principal business risks associated with

the business are shown on pages 16 to 18, whiist the risks
ansing from the Group’s financial instruments are covered
on page 10

The directors, in their consideration of going concern,
have reviewed the Group's future cash {low forecasls and
revenue projections, which they believe are based on a
realistic assessment of future business performance

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of
reasonable possible changes in trading perfarmance, show
that the Group should be able to operate within the levels
of its agreed facihttes Accordingly the directors believe

it appropnate to prepare the financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis

Takeovers Directive

Pursuant to 5992 of the Companies Act 2006, which
tmplements the EU Takeovers Directive the Company is
required to disclose certain additional infermation The
following gives those disclosures which are not covered
elsewhere in this Annual Report

The Company's Articles of Association (the ‘Articles”)

give the Board power to appoint directors but also require
directors to retire and submit themselves for election at the
first Annual General Meeting following their appointment
A director who retires in this way is eligible for election

but 1s not taken into account when deciding how many
directors should retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting The Articles themselves may be amended by
special resolution of the shareholders

Pursuant to the Articles, at every Annual General Meeting,
ane third of the current directors must retire by rotation

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for the management
of the business of the Company and may exercise all the
powers of the Company subject to the provisions of the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and the Articles

The Articles contain specific provisions and restrictions
regarding the Company’s power to borrow money Powers
relating to the 1ssuing and buying back of shares are also
included in the Articles and shareholders are asked to
renew such authonties each year at the AGM A copy of
the Articles 1s available on request from the Company
Secretary

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter
or terrminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover, such as commercial contracts, bank
agreements, property lease arrangements and employees’
share plans None of these are deemed to be significant

in terms of their potential impact on the business of the
Group as a whole
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Directors’' Remuneration Report

for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

Introduction

Ttus report has been prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and
Medium Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 The report also meets the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authority and describes how the Board has
applied the principles relating to directors' remuneration
in the Combined Code A resolution to approve the
report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company at which the financial statements will be
approved

The report has been divided into separate sections for
audited and unaudited information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
(the ‘Committee”) which s constituted in accordance

with the recommendations of the Combined Code The
Committee 1s comprised of independent non-executive
directors The current members of the Committee are

N M Carrington (Committee Charman) and M £ Rolfe,
both of whom served throughout the financial year

The Committee meets regularly but more frequently if
required During the year four Remuneration Committee
meetings were held, with both members present at each
meeting

Nerther of the Committee members has any personal
financial interest (other than as shareholders), conflicts

of interests anising from cross-directorships or day-to-

day involvement in runming the business The Committee
makes recommendations to the Board No director plays

a part in any discusston about therr remuneration The
terms of reference of the Commitiee are available from the
Company Secretary on request

In determining the directors’ remuneration for the year, the
Committee consulted F Martin (Chief Executive) about its
proposals Hewitt New Bridge Street (HNBS"), a trading
name of Aon Corporation, 15 the Committee’s appointed
remuneration adviser, continues to provide advice to the
Commuttee Neither HNBS nor Aon Corporation provides
any other services to the Company
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Remuneration policy for the Executive Directors

General policy

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract,
mativate and retain directors of the high calibre needed

to maintain the Group’s position as a market leader and

to reward them for enhancing value to shareholders The
performance measurement of the executive directors s
undertaken by the Commuittee The Committee is sensitive
to pay and conditions in the workforce when determining
executive remuneration policy and base salary increases in
particular

The Commuttee Is also aware of the potential risk to the
business of executive pay structures and 1s satisfied that
the current policy 1s compatibie with risk policies and
systems

There are five main elements of the remuneration package
for executive directors and senior management

+  Base salary

*  Benefits-in-kind

+  Pension arrangements

»  Performance-related annual bonus
*  Perforimance Share Plan

The Company’s policy 15 that a substantial proportion of
the remuneration of the executive directors should be
performance related At a target level of performance,
approximately 40%-45% of the total remuneration
package I1s performance-related

Salary and benefits

Executive directors’ base salaries are reviewed annually
by the Commitiee taking into account the responsibilities
skills and expenence of each indwidual, pay and
employment conditions within the Company and salary
levels within listed companies of a similar size Base salary
levels as at 1 Apnil 2010 and 201 are as follows

Salary at Salary at
Director Role 1 Apnt 2011 1 Apnl 2010

F Martin Chief Executve £262,656 £256,250
AJMorns  Finance Drrector £173,353 £169,125

Base salary levels were reviewed during the first quarter
of 201 and, consistent with the average increase awarded
across the Group, increased by 2 5% from 1 Apnl 20M




Polictes concerning benefits, including the Group's
company car policy, are reviewed penodically Currently,
benefits in kind compnse of motor cars and private health
cover

Pension

The executive directors and senior managers are members
of defined contribution pension schemes and annual
contributions are calculated by reference to base salaries,
with neither annual bonuses nor awards under the share
incentive schemes taken into account in calculating the
amounts due The contribution level continues to be 20%
of base salary for executive directors

Performance-related annual bonus

Executive directors participate in a performance-related
bonus scheme The maximum benus continues to be
capped at 100% of base salary for the Chief Executive and
75% of salary for the Finance Director

Performance targets are designed both to stretch and
encourage Individuals whilst aligning their mterests with
that of the Group The performance conditions are divided
80 20 between Group underlying profit before tax and
personal objectives For the Group underlying profit
before tax condition, a shiding scale range i1s set around

a target level (designad to be stretching but realistically
achievable) The personal objectives are set at the start

of the year and are designed to be as objective and
measurable as possible This mix of targets 1s considered to
provide a good link to the business strategy

With effect from 2011, a provision will be incorporated into
the Annual Bonus Plan to enable the Company to claw
back overpayments in the event of financial misstatement
or gross misconduct

In respect of the year ended 31 March 201 both of the
executive directors were entitled to a bonus, detatls of
which appear in the table of directors’ emoluments

Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan ('PSP"), which was approved
by shareholders at the 2008 AGM, was introduced as the
Company’s primary long-term incentive plan to replace the
short-term incentive plan ('STIPY) No further awards will
be made under the STIP although legacy awards continue
to vest on their eriginal terms

Under the PSP, awards are made to executive directors and
selected other executives on the following basis

+  The maximum award level 15 150% of base salary
per annum although awards up to 200% of base
salary may be granted o an individual in exceptional
circumstances (e g recruitment or retention) The
current policy 1s to grant awards over shares worth
100% of salary

Performance conditions are reviewed annually, so as to
ensure they remain appropriately pitched in relation to
the strategy and business cycle, and provide an optimal
alignment between the interests of executives and
shareholders

+  For 2071, an award will be subject to a total shareholder
return (‘TSR condition and a range of normalised
underlying earnings per share growth targets, each
applying to a separate 50% of an award and measured
over a period of three financial years

+  The TSR condition ts based on the Company's
underlying performance against the constituents of
the FTSE Small Cap (excluding investment trusts)
as at the date of grant 25% of this part of the award
will vest if the Company’s TSR 1s equal to the TSR of
the median company, with full vesting for top quartile
performance A shiding scale operates between these
points

+  For the earnings per share (EPS) part of the award,
25% vests for average annual underlying EPS growth
of RPI+3% p a, with ful vesting for average annual
EPS growth of RPI+12% p a A sliding scale operates
between these points

+  The Commuttee 1s comfortable that the blend of TSR
and EPS targets continues to provide a good balance
between incentivising and rewarding strong financial
performance on the one hand whilst, on the other
hand, providing a strong and direct alignment with the
interests of institutional shareholders by rewarding
stock market outperformance

*  Performance conditions are calculated by independent
advisers and verified by the Committee

+ Executives benefit, in the form of additional cash
or shares, from the value of dividends paid over the
vesting period, to the extent that awards vest
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Directors' Remuneration Report (continued)

for the Year Ended 31 March 201

= {tis currently intended that market purchased
shares are used to satisfy awards although there 1s
flexibility to use new issue and treasury shares within
institulional shareholder dilution limits

= Similar to the bonus plan, with effect from 2011 awards,
a proviston will be incorporated into the PSP to enable
the Company to claw back overpayments in the event
of misstatement or gross misconduct

Shareholding guidelines

A policy for share ownership guidelines 1s operated for
the executive directors and senior executives For the
executive directors the required threshold of share
ownership 1s 100% of base salary Until such time as this
level of shareholding 1s achieved, 50% of the net of tax
value of awards which vest under the PSP are required to
be retained

Executive Directors’ Service Contracts
The executive directors do not have fixed period contracts

Frank Martin's service contract dated 26 February 2001
ncludes a notice period of one year to be given by the
Company and of six months to be given by F Martin In
leu of giving notice the Company may terminate the
agreement on payment of a lump sum (subject to tax and
national insurance) equal to the salary and other benehits
to which he is entitled under this agreement

Andrew J Morris's service contract dated 23 Novemmber
2007 includes a notice period of one year to be given by
the Company and of six months to be given by A ] Morns
In lieu of giving notice the Company may terminate the
agreement on payment of a lump sum {subject to tax and
national insurance) equal to the salary and other benefits
to which he s entitled under this agreement

Non-Executive Directors' Contracts

The remuneration of the non-executive directors

1s determined by the Board (except the Company
Chairman’s fee, which 1s set and reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee) based on the level of fees paid
to non-executive directors of similar companies and by
considering independent external advice
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Neil A Johnson was appeinted non-executive Chairman
on 22 December 2000 having ihally joined the Board on
1 Juty 1998 and receives salary and fees for his services to
the Company of £95,000 per annum effective 1 Apnl 20N
80% 15 paid to a third-party consultancy company and
20% treated as earmings N A Johnson's service contract
dated 13 February 2006, amended March 2007, 1s subject
to termination on six months notice to be given by either
the Company or N A Johnson In fieu of giving notice the
Company may terminate the agreement on payment of a
lump sum (subject to tax and national insurance) equal

to the salary and fee to which he is entitled under this
agreement

Nigel M Carrington, non-executive director, was appointed
to the Board on 1 December 2007, and receives fees

for hus services to the Company of £40,000 per annum
effective 1 Apnl 2011 N M Carnington's service contract
dated 3 November 2007 15 subject to termmination on

six months notice to be given by either the Company or

N M Carnington In lieu of giving notice the Company

may terminate the agreement on payment of a lump sum
(subject to tax and national insurance) equal to the fee to
which he 1s entitled under this agreement

Mark E Rolfe, non-executive director, was appointed to the
Board on 1 lanuary 2008, and receves fees for hus services
to the Company of £40,000 per annum effective 1 Apnl
201 M E Rolfe’s service contract dated 22 November
2007 15 subject to termunation on six months notice to

be given by either the Company or M £ Rolfe In keu of
giving notice the Company may terminate the agreement
on payment of a lJump sum (subject to tax and national
insurance) equal to the fee to which he is entitled under
thrs agreement

None of the non-executive directors receives any pension
or performance-related pay from the Company




AUDITED INFORMATION
DIRECTORS" INTERESTS

Interests in shares

The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company in the year were

At At

31 March 31 March

2011 2010

number number

N A Johnson 50,000 50,000
F Martin 354,092 236,151
A J Morrs 6,702 5,000
N M Carnngton 10,000 10,000
M E Rolfe 10,000 10,000

All the interests detailed above are beneficial Apart from the interests disclosed above no directors were interested at any
time in the year in the share capital of any other group company

There have been no other changes in the interests set out above between 31 March 2011 and 3 June 2011

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

The total amount for directors’ remuneration was as follows

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Emoluments 675 809
Money purchase pension contributions 86 84
761 893
Directors’ detailed emoluments
The emoluments of the directors were as follows
Salary & Taxable Pension 2011 2010
Fees Bonus'  Benefits® Contnbution Total Total
£ £ L N £ £
Charrman:
N A Johnson 90,000 - - - 90,000 950,000
Executive:
F Martin 256,250 46,125 11,506 51,250 365,131 454,580
A J Morrs 169,125 22,832 9,587 34,691 236,235 278,270
Non-executive*
N M Carnngton 35,000 - - - 35,0600 35000
M E Rolfe 35,000 - - - 35,000 35,000
585,375 68,957 21,093 85,941 761,366 892,860

t The Directors bonus award 1s based on performance targets The targets are based on Group underlying profit before tax (80%) and personal objectives
(20%) Both executive directors achieved nik% (out of a maximum t00%) for the profil before tax element and 88% (out of a maximum 100%} for the

personzl objectives elemeni

2 Taxable benefis relate 1o the provision of a company car and hezlth assurance
3 The 2010 total column includes pension contributions which were F Martin (£50,000) and A J Marns (£33,845)

No directors waived emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010 - nif)
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

Performance Share Plan
At 31 March 2011, outstanding awards to directors under the Performance Share Pltan were as follows

M
pngg(:; Al Awarded Lapsed Vested At
Award Vesting Award 1 Apnl during during dunng 31 March
Director date date date 2010 year year year 2011
F Martin July 2008 July 2011 1496p 167,112 - - - 167,112
July 2009 July 2012 136 Op 183,824 - - - 183,824
June 2010 June 2013 139 5p - 183,692 - - 183,692
A J Morns July 2008  July 2011 149 6p 110,924 - - - 110,924
July 2009 July 2012 136 Op 121,324 - - - 121,324
June 2010 June 2013 139 5p - 121,237 - - 121,237

For the awards granted to date, 50% of an award is subject to a TSR condition and 50% 15 subject to an EPS performance
condition, both of which are measured over a pertod of three financial years For the TSR condition, 25% of this part of the
award will vest if Hornby's TSR 15 equal to the TSR of the median cormpany of the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap (struck
at the date of grant), with full vesting for top quartile performance, with a sliding scale operating between these points For
the EPS part of the award, 25% vests for average annual underlying EPS growth of RPI+3% p a, with full vesting for average
annual EPS growth of RPI+12% p a with a shiding scale aperating between these points

Interests in share options
Details of options held by directors at 31 March 2011 are set out below

Options Qptions Options Options Options
held at granted exercised lapsed held at
Date 1 Apnl dunng dunng dunng 31 March Exercise Exercise
Director of Grant 2010 the year the year the year 2011 prce penod
28 Mar 2005
F Martin 28 Mar 2002 1,000,000 ~ (400,000 - 600,000 76 8p -28 Mar 2012

F Martin's options granted March 2002 were subject to performance critena requirng profit before interest and tax to
exceed £4 0 million In the year ended 31 March 2003 This condition has been satisfied

F Martin exercised 400,000 share options during the year at 76 8p, the market price at the date of exercise was 158 Op,
realising a gain of £324,800 (2010 - no gains realised)

The market price of the Company's shares at 31 March 2011 was 108 Op and the range during the year ended 31 March 201
was 1050pte 172 Op

Short Term Incentive Plan
At 31 March 2071, outstanding awards to directors under the Short Term Incentive Plan were as follows

Market Value of Value of

prnce at entitlement entitlement

Award Vesting Award Number 31 March 2011 31 March 2(H0

Director date dates date of shares £'000 £000
F Martin June 2006 June 2010 266 0p - - 12
June 2008 June 2010/1/2 156 1p 54,381 59 103

59 115

A J Mornis June 2008 June 2010/1/2 156 1p 3,404 4 6

On 18 June 2010, 9,424 shares of the 2006 Award and 27,191 shares of the 2008 Award were vested to F Martin The share
price on this date was 139 Op

On 18 June 2010, 1,702 shares of the 2008 Award were vested to A ] Morns The share price on this date was 139 Op
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Value of entitlement at 31 March 2011 1s based on the closing market price of the Company’s shares of 108 Op (2010 -
126 25p)

Performance graph

The following graph shows the Company's total shareholder return compared to the TSR of the FTSE Small Cap (excluding
investment trusts) over the five year period to 31 March 2011 This index has been selected given that the Company 1s a
constituent of the FTSE Smali Cap

M Carrington
Remuneration Committee Charman

3 June 20M
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial
statements 1n accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law reguires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group and Parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that perod In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

»  state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statermnents

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Rernuneration Report comply with
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial staterments, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors and Corporate Information section, confirm that,
to the best of ther knowledge

« the Group and Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accardance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of the Group and Company, and

« the Chief Executive’s Report and Corporate Governance Statement include a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group, together with a descriptian of the principal nisks and
uncertamnties that it faces

So far as the directors are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditars are unaware, and
each director has taken all the steps that they ocught to have taken as a director in order to make themself aware of any
relevant audit nformation and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

By order of the Board

———

J W Stansfiel
Company Secretary

3 June 20M
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of Hornby Plc

We have audited the financial stalements of Hornby Plc {or the year ended 31 March 2011 which comprise the Group
and Company Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Company Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes
in Equity, the Group and Company Cash Flow Statement the Notes to the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation 1s apphcable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopied by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 26, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with apphicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not in giving these opimions, accept
or assume responsibilty for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent i writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent Company's
arcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the
financral and non-financial iInformation in the annual report and accounts to identiy material iInconsistencies with the
audited financial statements i we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or nconsistencies we consider
the implications {or our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our apinion the financial statements

+  give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of the
Group's and the Parent Company's profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opimion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

[n our aptnion

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 20086,

»  the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared s
consistent with the financial statements, and

+ the information given in the Corporale Governance Statement set out on pages 13 to 19 with respect to internal control
and nsk management systems and about share capital structures is consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of Hornby Plc (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our cpinion

+  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not wisited by us, or

«  the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

« certam disclosures of direclors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the Parent Company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+  the directors’ statement, set out on page 19, in relation to going concern, and

*  the parts of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance with the mine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review, and

*  certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors’ remuneration

——
Graham Lambert (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

|
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Gatwick

i

3 June 20N
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Group and Company

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Group Company
2010
2011 Re-stated" 2011 2010
Note £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Revenue 2 63,372 63863 1,251 1,361
Cost of sales (34,095) (32,587} - -
Gross Profit 29,277 31,276 1,251 1,361
Distribution costs (2,879) (2,702} - -
Selling and marketing costs (12,882) (12,778} - -
Administrative expenses (8,406) (8,243} (795) {892)
Other operating expenses 4 {519) (1,549} (166) {112)
Operating Profit 2 4,891 6,004 290 357
Finance income 3 64 20 3,855 228
Finance costs 3 {826) {809) (228} {201)
Profit before taxation 4 4,429 5,215 3,917 384
Analysed as
Underlying profit before taxation 4,423 5708 3,817 384
Net foreign exchange impact on intercompany loans 96 (98) - -
Amortisation of intangibles {390} (395) - -
Profit before taxation 4129 5215 3,917 384
Taxation 5 (1,274) (1,530) {135) {102)
Profit for the year after taxation 2855 3685 3,782 282
Other comprehensive income
Cash flow hedges, net of tax {655} 848 - -
Currency translatton differences {15) 19 79 221
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year, net of tax {670) 867 19 221
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,185 4,552 3,861 503
Earnings per ordinary share
Basic 7 750p 976p
Diluted 7 743p 960p
*  Seenote 1
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Group and Company Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 201
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 8 13,372 13,418 - -
Intangible assets 9 4,820 57227 - -
Property, plant and equipment 10 10,208 10,020 1,344 1,387
Investments 11 - - 35,172 33,758
Deferred tax assets 20 109 140 16 30

28,509 28,803 36,632 35,175

Current assets

Inventones 12 16,213 12,273 - -
Trade and other recevables 13 13,648 13,291 38 40
Denwvative financial investments 19 93 750 - -
Current tax assets 17 282 175 130 141
Cash and cash equwvalents 14 4,952 8,998 1 45

35,188 35,487 179 226

Liabilities
Current habilities
Borrowings 18 {3,136) (1,718} - -
Dervative financial instruments 18 {3,193) (3,342) - -
Trade and other payables 15 {11,259) (10,363) (132) (308)
Provisions 16 (413) (391} - -
Current tax liabiities 17 (564) (1,020} {20) (144)
(18,565) (16,834} (152) {(452)
Net current assets/(habilities) 16,623 18,653 27 {226)
Non-current hiabilities
Borrowings 18 (8,026) (10,547) ({5,331) (5,373)
Deferred tax habiities 20 (337) (281) (177) (196)
(8,363) (10,828) (5,508) (5,569)
Net assets 36,769 36,628 31,051 29,380
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capttal 21 385 380 385 380
Share premium 5643 5340 5643 5340
Caprtal redemption reserve 55 55 55 55
Translation reserve (529) (514) (1,290) (1,369)
Hedging reserve (487) 168 - -
Other reserves 1,688 1,688 19,145 19,145
Retaned earnings 30,014 29511 7,113 5,829
Total equity 36,769 36,628 31,051 29330

The financial statements on pages 29 t0 33 were approved by the Board of directors on 3 June 2011 and were signed
on its behalf by

F Martin
Drirector
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010

Caputal
Share Share redempbion Translation  Hedgmng Cther  Retaned Total
capl!al premim rasene reserve reserve reserves earnings equity
GROUP £000  £000 £°000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £7000
Balance at 1 Apnl 2009 380 5,278 55 (533) (680) 1,688 25,366 31,554
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 19 848 - 3685 4,552
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares - 62 - - - - - 62
Share-based payments - - - - - - 289 289
Shares vested from employee benefit trust - - - - - - 171 171
- 62 - - - - 460 522
Balance at 31 March 2010 380 5,340 55 {514} 168 1,688 29,511 36,628
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - {15} (655} - 2855 2185
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares 5 303 - - - - - 308
Share-based payments - - - - - - 51 51
Shares vested from employee benefit trust - - - - - - 146 146
Dividends - - - - - - {2,549) (2,549)
5 303 - - - - {2,352) {(2,044)
Balance at 31 March 2011 385 5,643 55 {529) (487) 1,688 30,014 36,769

Retamned earrings includes £638,000 at 31 March 2011 (2010 - £655,000) which 1s not distnbutable and relates to a
1986 revaluation of land and buldings

Capttat
Share Share redemption Translation Other  Retained Total
capital  premium resarve reserve  resernves earnngs equity
COMPANY £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 Apnl 2009 380 5,278 55 {1,590} 19,145 5,258 28,526
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 221 - 282 503
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares - 62 - - - - 62
Share-based payments - - - - - 289 289
- 62 - - - 289 351
Balance at 31 March 2010 380 5,340 55 (1,369} 19,145 5,829 29,380
Total comprehensive ncome for the year - - - 79 - 37782 3,861
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares 5 303 - - - - 308
Share-based payments - - - - - 51 51
Dividends - - - - — {2,549} (2,549)
5 303 - - - {2,498} (2,190)
Balance at 31 March 2011 385 5,643 55 (1,290) 19,145 7,113 31,051
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 6,072 14,385 325 633
Interest receved 64 20 174 228
Interest pad (826) (809) (228) (201}
Tax pad {1,750) (1,653) (253) (107}
Net cash generated from operating actmties 3,560 11,943 18 553
Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 181 2 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,499) (3,827) - -
Dmdends received - - 3,681 -
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing actvities (4,318) (3,825 3,681 -
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 308 62 308 62
(Repayments)/proceeds from issue of loans (1,554) 3,333 - -
Finance lease capital payments (54} (19) - -
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders (2,549) - {2,549) -
Loans to subsidiary undertakings - - {1,529) {592)
Net cash {used in)/generated from financing activities (3,849) 3,376 (3,770) (530)
Effect of exchange rate movements 125 445 37 14
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,482) 11,939 {34) 37
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at begnning of the year 8,879 (3,060) 45 8
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 4397 8879 11 45
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts consist of

Cash and cash equivalents 4,952 8,998 11 45
Bank overdrafts (555}  (119) - -
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 4397 8,879 11 45
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Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

£'000 £'000 £°000 £7000
Profit before taxation 4,129 5215 3,917 384
Interest payable 826 809 228 M
interest recewable (64} (20} {174) (228)
Dnvidend income - - (3,681} -
Amortisation of intangible assets 390 395 - -
Depreciation 4,060 4,376 43 46
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {2) (m - -
Share-based payments 51 289 166 12
Loss/{gain) on financial denvatives 75 {24) - -
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 22 {147} - -
(Increase)/decrease in inventones (3,940} 2,095 - -
{increase)/decrease n trade and other recewvables (349) (167} 6 (29)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 874 1,565 {180) 147
Cash generated from operations 6,072 14,385 325 633
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accountng polictes for the year ended 31 March 2011
The pnncipal accounting policies adopted i the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Tha finanacial nformation for the year ended 31 March 2011 has been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’)
as adopted by the European Union ('EU’), Intemational Financial Reporing Interpretations Commuttes ('IFRIC') interpretations and with those panrts
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companes reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statemenis have been prepared under the
histoncal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and kabtites {including dervative instruments) at far value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assurmptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and kabilities at the date of the financta) statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses duning the reporting penod Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ulimately may differ from those estimates

RE-STATEMENT

The Group has adjusted the accounting for settlement discounts and these are now a deduction to revenue Histoncally settlement discounts have
been included within costs of sales and operating expenses This adjustment the net impact of which ts a reclassification between revenue and
expenses, has been made in the comparatve numbers in the statement of comprehensve INncome and relevant notes The settlement discount
adjustrment reduced revenue by £873,000 in the year ended 31 March 2010

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsdianes are all entities over winch the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting nghts Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group They are
de-consohdated from the date that control ceases

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes by the Group The cost of an acquistion 1s measured as the
farr value of the assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and labilittes incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs dwecily attnbutable to
the acquistion identfiable assets acqured and liabiitres and contingent habilities assurmed In a business combination are measured nitially at thesr far
values at the acquisttion date, urespective of the extent of any minonty interest The excess of the cost of acquisiion over the far value of the Group's
share of the identfiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gans on transactions between Group companies are eliminated Unrealised losses are also
ehminatad but considered an imparment indicator of the asset transferred Accounting policies of subsidianes have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

Interpretations effectne n the current year

1AS 36 {Amendment}, 'Impairment of assets, effective 1 January 2010 The amendment clanfies that the largest cash-generating unit {or group of units)
to which goodwill should be allocated for the purposes of impairment testing is an operating segment, as defined by paragraph 5 of IFRS 8, ‘Operating
segments’

IFRS 8 {Amendment) "“Operating segments’ - Minor test amendment to clanfy that an entity s required to disclose a measure of segment assets only
it regularly reported 1o the chief operating decision maker

IAS 7 (Amendment) 'Statement of Cash Flows' — Amendment to require that only expenditurs that results n a recognised asset in the balance sheet
can be classffied as investing actmties
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Interpretations effective in the current year but not refevant
The foilowing interpretations to pubiished standards are mandatory for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 Apnl 2010 but are not relevant to
the Group's operations in the current year

IFRS 2 Group cash settied share-based payment transachons' {amendment)

IFRS 3 revised ‘Business combinations’

IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’ (amendment)

1AS 17 ‘Leases’{@amendment)

1AS 27 ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’ {revised)

IAS 28 ‘Investments in associates' (amendment)

1AS 31 ‘investments in jont ventures {amendment)

IAS 32 ‘Financial nstruments Preseniation — Classification of nghts 1ssues (amendment)
IFRIC 17 ‘Distnbution of non-cash assets to owners'

IFRIC 18 ‘Transfers of assets from customers’

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 Aprl 2010 or later pencds, but the Group has net early adopted them

IFRIC 19 ‘Extinguishung financial kabities with equity instruments’
iFRS 9 ‘Finangial nstruments’
1AS 24 ‘Related party disclosures’ {revised)

The dwectors are currently reviewing the impact that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in fulure pencds will have on the financal
statements of the Group

RECONCILIATION OF STATUTORY TO NON STATUTORY INFORMATION IN THE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

Underlying profit before taxation 18 shown to present a clearer view of the trading performance of the business Management has identrfied the
foliowing non-trvial adjustmenis, whose inclusion N earings could distort undertying trading performance net foreign exchange gains/losses on
intercompany loans which are dependent on exchange rates from time to tme and can be volatile and amortisation of ntangibles which resutt from
hstoric acqurstions and restructunng

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Profit before taxation 4,129 5215
Foreign exchange on intercompany loans including impact of forelgn exchange collar {96} 98
Amortisation of iIntangibles {note 9) 390 395
Undertying profit before taxation 4,423 5,708

The Statement of Comprehensive Incorme discloses foreign exchange movements and amortisation of intangibles in other operating income/{expenses}

Reconciliation of adjusted gross profit margin

Revenue 63,372 63,863
Gross profit 29,277 31,276
Net foreign exchange impact on inter company loans {99) 791)
Increase/{decrease) in stock provisions 105 17)
Adjusted gross profit margin 29,283 30,268

46.2% 47 4%
Reconcihiation of net debt

Cash 4,952 8,998
Total borrowings (note 18} {11,034)  (12,152)
Net debt {6,082) (3,154)

Homby Hobbies Limited, the Group's UK trading subsidiary, has granted Euro denommated mtercompany loans to sister subsidiary companies
that are translated into Sterling at statutory penod ends thereby creating exchange gamns or losses In order to mitigate the exchange exposure
Homby Hobbies Limited has entered a foreign exchange collar contract to sell an equal number of Eurgs in October 2011 that will be revalued by an
approximately similar but opposite Stering value at each penod end
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The foresgn exchange collar 1s for a prncipal amount of Euro 16 5 milion and 5 1n place O minimise exposure to Euro denommated ntercompany
loans

The amount shown above compnses losses on translaton of intercompany oans of £127,000 {2010 - loss of £593 000) offset by a gain on markng
to market the forexgn exchange coliar of £223,000 (2010 - gain of £485,000)

Beneficial impact of the collar as at 3 October 2011 s expected to be a minmum of £340 000 f the exchange rate exceeds the strke rate of
1 4300€ £, increasing to a maximum of £823 000 at the paricipation cap rate of 1 3725€ £ compared to the ntercompany loans Stering valuation
at 31 March 2007 (1 4734€ £}

As at 31 March 2011 the cumnulative profit impact 1s a gain of £855,000 Therefore in the penod 1 Apnl 2011 to 30 September 2011 there wik be a
charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income between £32,000 and £515,000

The fluctuation of foresgn exchange and resultant Impact on intercompany lcans and foreign exchange collar 1s 56t out below

€165 milion Net gary
Forergn ntercompany Gan/ Far foss) n

Exchange loan foss) value Profit

Rate n Sterling on loan coflar before tax

Date € £ £000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
06 Aug 2007 Transaction 147 11,199 - - -

31 Mar 2008 125 13,156 1957 {1,346) 611
31 Mar 2009 108 15,288 4039 (3,270} 208
31 Mar 2010 112 14,722 3,523 (2,774) {70}
31 Mar 2011 113 14,606 3,407 (2,552) 106
Tota! cumulative gain/{loss) to profit before tax 855

Prior to exprry October 2011 the Company intends to enter a new 5-year foreign exchange collar contract that will nclude the current coltar mark to
market valuaton and have no cash impact

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue comprses the far value of the sale of goods net of value added tax, rebates and discounts, royalty income and after eliminating sales within
the Group

Revenue 1s recognised as follows

{a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has despatched products to the customer

{b) Royalty income
Royalty income is recogrisedt on an accnuals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements

{c) Sales retums
The Group establishes a sales retums prowvision at the penod end that reduces income In anticipation of customer returns of goods sold in the penod

Dmndend income in the Company s recogrised upon receipt

Management fees are recogrused in the Company on an accruals basis in refation to costs incurred on behall of subsidiary companies

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segments are reported i a manner consisient with the intemal reporiing provided to the chief operating decision-maker The chief operating
decision-maker who 1s responsible for alocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been entfied as the Board
of the Group that makes strategic decisions

Operating profit of each reporting segment includes revenue and expenses directly attnbutable to or able to ba allocated on a reasonable basis
Segment assets and habidities are those operating assets and kabilives directly attnbutable to or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Goodwill ansing on a business combination before 1 Apri 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, 15 not subject to amortisation but tested for impairment
on an annual basis Intangible assets ansing on a business combination subsequent to 1 Apnl 2004, are separately identified and valued, and subject
to amortisation over therr estrmated economic ives The carrying value of goodwill 1s reduced by any impammment amount recorded
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GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the far value of the Group s share of the net dentfiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acqusiion Goodwill s tested annually for imparrment and carned at cost less accumulated imparment losses Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the cammying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwill 1s attocated to cash-generating uniis for the purpose of smpawrment testing The allocation 1s made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating unts that are expected to benefit from the businass combmation m which the goodwill arose identified according to operating

segment

INTANGIBLES

(@) Brand names

Brand names are capialsed at far value as at the date of acquisition They are carmed at ther far value less accumulated amontsation and any
accumulated imparment losses Amortisation 1s calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the farr valus of trade names over therr estimated
economic life of 15-20 years Brand names have been valued on a “relief from royalty” basis

{bY Customer lists

Customer lists are capitalised at far value as at the date of acquisiion They are camed at ther farr value less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated mparment losses Amortisation s calcutated using the sirasght-ine method to allocate the farr value of customer relationships over thewr
estimated economic ita of 10 years Customer lists have been valued according 1o discounted incremental aperating profit expected to be generated
frerm each of them over therr useful ives

(c) Research and development

Research expendiiure 15 recognised as an expenss as incurred! Costs incurred on development projects {relating to the design and testing of new
products) are recognised as intangible assats when it s probable that the project will be a success, considenng its commercial and technological
feasibilty, and costs can be measured reliably Other development expendrtures are recognised as an expense as incurred

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buldings are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation Assets revalued pnor to the transhion to IFRS use this valuation as deemed cost
at this date Other fixed assets are shown at histoncal cost less accumultated deprecation Cost mcludes the onginal purchase price of the asset and
the costs attributable to bringing the asset to ds working condition for its intended use

Depreciabon 15 provided at rates calculated to wnte off the cost or valuation of each asset on a straght-ine basis (with the exception of tools and
moulds) over its expected useful Ife to its residual value, as folliows

Freehold buldings — 3010 50 years
Plant and equipment - 5to 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years
Freehold land 5 not deprecated

Tools and moulds are depreciated at varying rates in ing with the related estimated product sales on an tem-by-tem basis up to a maamum of 4
years

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinine useful Iife, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for imparment Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for Impainment when events or changes n crcumstances indicate that the carrying vatue may not be recoverable
An impairment loss 1s recogrused for the amouns by which the asset’s camying value exceeds ds recoverable amount, which 1s considered to be the
higher of its value in use and far value less costs to sell In order to assess Impairment, assets are grouped into the lowest levels for which there are
separately identfiable cash flows (cash-generating units) Cash flows used to assess imparment are discounted using appropnate rates taking nto
account the cost of equity and any nsks relevant to those assets

INVESTMENTS
In the Company's financil statements, investmenis in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any imparment  Investments revalued using the
aquity method of valuation pnor to the transition to IFRS use this valuation as deemed cost at this date

INVENTORIES

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 15 predominantly determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method
Aliernative methods may be used when proven to generate no matenal difference The cost of finished goods and work in progress compnses raw
matenals, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacty)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Net realisable value 1s based on antbicipated selling pnce less further costs expected 10 be ncurred to completion and disposal Prowisions are made
aganst those stocks considered to be cbsoleie or excess to requirements on an tem-by-item basis

The replacement cost, based upon latest invoice pnces before the balance sheet date 15 considered to be higher than the balance sheet value
of iInventones at the year end due to pnce nses and exchange fluctuations It s not considered practicable to provide an accurate estmate of the
difference at the year end date

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial kabdites and equity mstruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arangements entered into

An equity Instrument 1S any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its katekities  Equity instruments
1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade recevables are recognised initially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment A prowiston for
imparment 15 established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginat terms of
recenvables The amount of the provision 1s recognised i the Statement of Comprehensive income

TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are recognised intally at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

TAXATION [INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX
Corporation tax, where payable 1s provided on taxable profits at the current rate

The taxation kabilities of certain Group undertakangs are reduced wholly or in part by the surrender of iosses by tellow Group undertakings

Deferred tax 15 prowided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date beitween the tax bases of assets and labiities and therr carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences carmry-forward of unused tax asseis and unused tax losses, to the extant
that it 15 probable that taxable profit will be avalable aganst which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses can be utilsed The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it s no longer prabable that suficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utiised

Deferred tax assets and liabiities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1o the year when the asset 1s realised or the hability s settled,
based on tax rates (and tax faws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Tax relating to tems recognised directly
I equaty 18 recognised In equity and not in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income

Deferred tax assets and habilities have not been discounted

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, none of which are regarded as cntical The resutting accounting estmates will,
by defintion, seldom equal the related actual resufts The estimates and assumptions that may have an element of nsk causing an adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and habilites within the next financal year include prowvisions for stock obsolescence, customer retums, doubtful debts,
impairment reviews, far values of share-based payments far values of denvatives and recoveratality of deferred tax assets All of the above are
estmated with reference to histonca! data expectation of future events and reviewed regularly

Further details in relation to mpaimment reviews are in note 8 and in relation to share-based payments in note 22

Labilires and provisions are recogrised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and d 1s more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required te settle the obligation and the amount has been refiably estimated The expensa relating to any
lability or prowvision 15 presented i the Statement of Comprehensive income net of any rembursemant

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present oblgation at the balance
sheet date I matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expecied future cash flows of the Group at rates that reflect cument market
assessments of the time value of money
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand deposits at all banks, other Iiquid Investments with ongnal maturtties of three months or less and
bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts or loans where there 1s no nght of set off are shown within borrowmgs i current or non-current labilties on the
balance sheet as appropriate

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Homby Plc operates three share-based plans
- Shara Option Scheme
-~ Short Term Incentive Plan
- Performance Share Plan

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certan employees Equity-seftied share-based payments are measured at fair value
{excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The far value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied
share-based payments 1s expensed on a straght-line basis over the vesting penod, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest
and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting condiions

The grant by the Company of options over its equity mstruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group 1s treated as a capital
contnbution The far value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date far value, 1s recognised over the vesting penod as
an increase to Investment In subsidiary undertakings with a corresponding credit to equity

Share Option Scheme
Far value 1s measured by use of the Black Scholes model The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferabiity, exercse restnctions, and behawoural considerations

Short Term Incentwe Plan
The Short Term Incentive Plan (STIP) nvestment 15 camed at the cost of the shares held This investment i own shares I1s preserted as a deduction
from shareholders' funds

The matched element of the STIP which has a condition of employment attached to it ss recorded at fair value and spread over the vesting penod of
the shares and recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income over this penod
Performance Share Plan
Awards are granted to executve directors i shares worth 100% of salary, with lower levels of grant for less senior executives
The Performance Share Plan (PSP) incorporates two 3-year performance conditions
—  Total Shareholder Return (TSR}
- Earnings per share (EPS) growth targets
gach applying to a separate 50% of the award and vest on the 3rd annversary of gran! as appropnaie
The TSR far value and the projected EPS award far value are spread over the vesting penod of the shares and recognised m the Staternent of

Comprehensive Income in the appropnate year

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS

During the year the Group operated a defined contribution money purchase pension scheme under which it pays contnbutions based upon a
percentage of the members’ basic salary The scheme 1s administered by trustees erther appointed by the Company or elected by the members (to
constitute one third minimum}

Contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income according to the year in which they
are payable

Further information on pension costs and the scheme arrangements 1§ provided in note 24
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary shares issued are shown as share capdal at nominal value The premmium receved on the sale of shares in excess of the nommal value 15
shown as share premium within shareholders® equity
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LEASES
The Group enters nto operating and finance leasas

Assets held under finance leases are intially reported at the far value of the asset with an equivalent llability categonsed as appropnate under cument
and non-current payables The assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and therr useful economic Ives Finance charges are allocated
to accounting penods over the penod of the lease to produce a constant rate of retumn on the outstanding balance Rentals are apporuioned between
finance charges and the reduction cf the labiity, and allocated to net interest

Assets under operating leases are charged on a straght-line basis to the Statement of Comprehensive Incoma over the lease term

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are recognised intially at far value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequentty camed at amortised cost, any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the pencd
of the borrowings using the effective nterest method

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it 1S probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down In this case, the fee Is deferred until the draw-down occurs and subsequently amortised over the fe of the facility To the
extent that there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down the fee s capitalised as a prepayment for iquidity
senaces and amortised over the penod of the facility to whech it relates

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial nsk factors

The Group's operations expose it 1o a vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes In foreign currency exchange rates, market interest
rates, credit nsk and its kquidity position The Group has in place a nsk management programme that seeks to imit adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group by using foreign currency financial nstruments In addion other instruments are used to manage the Group's Interest rate
exposurg

{a)} Foreign exchange rnisk

The Group I1s exposed to foreign exchange nsks aganst Steriing prranly on transactions in Hong Kong Dollars and US Dollars 1t enters into forward
currency contracts to hedge the cash flows of its product sourcing operation { e 1t buys HK Dollars forward in exchange for Stering) and looks forward
6-12 months on a roling basis at forecasted purchase volumes The policy framework reguires hedging between 80 per cent and 100 per cent of
anticpated import purchases that are denominated in HK Dollars

The Group has granted Eurc denominated intercompany loans to subsidiary companies that are translated to Stering at statutory penod ends thereby
creating exchange gains or kosses In order to mitigate the exchange exposure the Group has entered a foregn exchange collar contract to sell an
equal number of Euros in Qctober 2011 that will be revalued by an approximately similar but opposite Stering value at each penod end

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits and bank borrowings  The Group borrows pnncipally In Stering, at floating rates
of interest to meet short term funding reguremants At the year end the Group s only borrowings were finance leases, a revohang credtt facdity, bank
overdrafts and a fixed tenm loan agreement An interest rate hedge i1s in place to protect the Group agans! future nterest rate nses

{c) Credit nsk
The Group manages its credit nsk through a combination of internal credit management policies and procedures and external credit insurance

{d) Ligquidity nisk

Tha Group has borrowings compnsing a revohng credit facility {£10 milion — expinng July 2012) and a fixed-term koan agreement (£10 midlion — expinng
July 2014} The Group's policy on liquidity nsk s to ensure that sufficient cashis available 10 fund future operations The peak level of net debt in the
year to March 2011 was £14 6 million The Board manages exposure to lquidity nsk by maintairung adequate facilities to meet the fulure needs of the
business Those needs are determined by monitonng forecast and actual cash flows The Group regularty moniiors its performance against its banking
covenants to ensure comphance

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
To manage exposure o foreign currency nsk, the Group uses foreign currency forward contracts and a foreign exchange collar, and to manage interest
rate nsk, the Group uses an nterest rate swap, also known as demative financial instruments

Danvatives are inttially recogrised at far value on the date a denvative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at ther far value The
Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged tems, as well as its nsk management
objective and strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactons The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
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ongoing basis, of whether the dervatives that are used In hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes n far values of the hedged
terns

{a) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equty The gain
or loss refating to the neftective portion 1s recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within operating expenses

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the penods when the hedged item affects profit or loss
{for instance when the forecast purchase that 1s hedged takes place) The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of forward foreigh exchange
contracts hedgng import purchases 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within ‘cost of sales’ However, when the forecast
fransaction that 15 hedged results in the recogrition of a non-financial asset {for example, inventory) the gains and kosses previously deferred 1n equity
are transferred from equity and included in the intial measurement of the cost of the asset The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of
gooeds sold in the case of inventory

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accountng, any cumulative gain or loss existing
In equity at that time remains In equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transachion 1s uttimately recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gan or loss that was reporied in equity 15 Imrmediately transferred
to the Statement of Comprehenswve Income

{b} Derwvatives that do not gualify for hedge accounting

Certan denvative nstruments including the foreign exchange collar are not considered effectve and do not qualfy for hedge accounting Such
dervatives are classified as at far value through the Statement of Comprehensive Income and changes in the fai value of dervatve instruments that
do not qualfy for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION
The fair values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed 1o be approximate to ther book values

The farr values of the denvative financial iInstruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed n note 19

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded n Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from such transactions are recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income except when deferred in equity as
qualfying cash flow hedges Monetary assets and latilties denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruing at the balance
sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Foreign exchange gains/losses relating to foreign currency foans and other foreign exchange adjustments are included within operating profit and
shown separately as part of operating income/expenses

On congolidation, Statement of Comprehensive Income and cash flows of foreign subsidianes are transtated into Sterling using average rates that
existed dunng the accounting period The balance sheets of foreign subsidianes are franslated into Sterkng at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date Gans or losses arsing on the transtaton of opening and closing net assets are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
Final dwvidends are recorded in the Statement of Changes in Equity in the peniod 1in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders Intenm
divdends are recorded in the penod in which they are approved and paid

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING
Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board {chief operating decision-maker) that are used to
make strategic decisions

The Board considers the business from a geographic perspective Geographically, management considers the performance in the UK, US, and
Continental Europs {Spam, taly and rest of Europe)

Although the US segment does not meet the quaniitative thresholds required by IFRS 8, management has concluded that this segment should be
reported, as it 1s closely montored by the Board as it 1s outside Europe

The Company 1s a holding company operating In the UK with s results given in the Company Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 29 and
Its assets and kabiies gven in the Company Balance Sheet on page 30 Other Company information 15 provided in the other notes to the accounts
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2011

Rest Jotal
of  Reportable Intra
UK usa Spam laly Euope  Segments Group Group
£000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Revenue - External 47 273 2,667 3.260 4628 5,544 63,372 - 63372
~ Other segments 3526 - 3.823 347 - 7.696 {7.696) -
Operating profit/{loss) 4,416 (35) (160) 650 {20) 4,80 - 4,801
Finance cost - External (763} - {45) (2} {16} (826) - (826)
- Cther Segments - (9} (221) (295) {104} (629) 629 -
Finance income — Bxternal 60 - - 4 - B84 - 64
— Other segments 629 - - - - 629 {629) -
Profit/(loss) before taxation 42342 {44} {426} 397 {(140) 4,129 - 4129
Analysed as
Undertying profit before taxation 4 509 (44} (426} 491 {107) 4,423 - 4,423
Net foreign exchange impact on
intercompany loans 96 - - - - 96 - a6
Amortisation of intangibles 263) - - 94 (33) (390 - (390}
Profit/loss) before taxaton 4342 {44} (426} 397 {140) 4,129 - 4129
Taxation (1,0682) - {134) (54) (24) (1,274) - (1274}
Profit/(loss) for the year 3,280 {a4) {560) 343 (164} 2,855 - 2,855
Segment assets 56,472 1,317 11,014 11,479 3,454 83736 (20,430} 63,306
Less intercompany recenvables (18,064) (2) {1,696) (658) (10) {20,430) 20,430 -
Add tax assets 100 - 130 107 45 391 - 391
Total assets 38,517 1,315 9,448 10,928 3,489 63,697 - 63,697
Segment izbilities 21,685 1380 10510 8,379 4,503 46,457 {20 430 26027
Less intercompany payables {100) {1 259) (7.873) {7,669) {3.529) {20 430) 20430 -
Add tax labiites 813 - 85 23 - 901 - 201
Total habilities 22,398 A4 2,702 733 974 26,928 - 26,928
Other segment items
Capal expenditure 3,147 7 1,228 110 14 4,506 - 4,506
Depreciation 2,833 15 670 526 16 4,060 - 4,060
Net foreign exchange on
intercompany loans {96) - - - - (96} - (©6)
Amortisation of intangible assets 263 - - 94 33 390 - 390
Share-based payment
— charge to Staternent of Comprehensive Income
{note 22} 51 - - - - 51 - 51

All transactions between Group companies are on normal commercial terms and an amn s length basis
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Year ended 31 March 2010

Rest Total
of Reportable Intra
UK usa Span baly Ewope  Segments Group Group
£7000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £°000 £'006
Revenue - External
(restated) 45,627 2,763 3,559 5520 6,394 63,863 - 63,863
- Other segments 2972 - 814 2,592 - 6,478 (6,478) -
Operating profit/(loss) 4,574 {47) 440 902 135 6,004 - 6,004
Finance cost — External (768} - (19 {6} {16} (802) - (609
- Other Segments - (10) {201) (268) {95} {574} 574 -
Finance income - External 17 - 2 1 - 20 - 20
- QOther segments 574 - - - - 574 (574) -
Profit/({loss} before taxation 4,397 (57) 222 629 24 5.215 - 5215
Anatysed as
Underlying profit before taxation 4,758 {57) 222 727 58 5,708 - 5708
Net foreign exchange impact on
intercompany loans (88) - - - - (38) - (38}
Amortisatron of intangibles {263) - - (98) (34} (395) - {395}
Profit/{loss) before taxation 4,397 {57) 222 629 24 5,215 - 5,215
Taxation (1.115) 1 71) (285) 60) {1,530) - (1,530}
Profit/{loss) for the year 3,282 (56) 151 344 (36) 3,685 - 3,685
Segment assets 57,175 1,755 10,194 12,274 3,353 B84 751 (20,776) 63,975
Less intercompany recevables (18,645) - {1314} (802) {15}  {20.776) 20,776 -
Add tax assets 116 - 141 24 34 315 - 315
Total assets 38,646 1,755 9,021 11,496 3,372 64,290 - 64,290
Segment labities 23.653 1819 8.536 8,703 4,426 47,137 {20,776) 26,361
Less intercompany payables {788) (1742 {7.085) (7.569) (3.582) (20,776) 20,776 -
Add tax iabiities 960 - 96 241 4 1,301 - 1,301
Total liabilities 23,825 77 1,547 1,375 838 27,662 - 27,662
Other segment items
Capdal expenditure 2816 16 798 384 1 4,025 - 4,025
Depreciation 2,984 15 572 788 17 4,376 - 4,376
Net foreign exchange on
intercompany loans 98 - - - - 938 - 98
Amortisation of intangible assets 263 - - oe 34 395 - 395
Share-based payment
- charge to Statement of Comprehensve Income
{note 22} 289 - - - - 289 - 289

All transactions between Group companies are on normnal commercial terms and an am's length basis
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3 FINANCE (COSTS)INCOME

Group Company
2011 2010 201 2010
£000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Finance costs
interest expense on bank borrowings {B18) {ro8y 6] -
Interest expense on INtercompany borrowings - - (221) (201)
Interest expense on finance leases 8) (11 - -
{826) (809) (228) (201)
Finance income
Bank interest 64 20 - -
Interest income on ntercompany loans - - 174 228
Dmdend income - - 3,681 -
64 20 3,855 228
Net finance (costs)/income {762) {789) 3,627 27
4 OTHER OPERATING {INCOME)/EXPENSE
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £'000 €000 £000
The followng items have been ncluded in armving at profit before taxation
Staff costs (note 23) 9,643 Q875 928 47
Inventones
~ Cost of mventones recogrised as an expense (included in cost of sales) 36,309 33,814 - -
- Wiite down release {102) 34) - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
- Owned assets 4,036 4,356 43 46
- Under finance leases 24 20 - -
Profit on disposal of assets 2 M - -
Other operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 183 175 - -
- Property 362 411 - -
Repars and mamntenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 198 236 - -
Ressarch and development expenditure 1,738 1,220 - -
Foraign exchange losses/(gains)
— On trading transactions 174 767 - -
Impairment of trade recenvables 52 a5 - -
Cther operating expenses/{income)
- Foreign exchange on trading transactions a9 791 - -
~ Net impact of foreign exchange on intercompany loans (96) 938 - -
- Movement on far value of ineflective hedge 75 (24) - -
- Share-based payment charge 51 289 166 112
- Amorbsation of intangible assets 330 395 - -
519 1,549 166 112
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Services provided by the Group's auditor and network firms

Bunng the year the Group (including 1its overseas subsidianes) obtained the following seraces from the Group’s auditors and network firms as detailed

below
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£1000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's audttors for the audit of parent company and consolidated
accounts 20 87 12 12
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and its associates for other services
— The auditing of accounts of subsikdianes of the Company pursuant to legistation 50 58 - -
-~ Other senices pursuant to legislation 19 19 19 19
— Services relatng to corporate finance transactions - - - -
-~ Services refating to taxation 34 29 10 10
193 193 41 41
In the current financial year the level of non audit fees was well within the 1 1 ratio to audit fees as per Audit committee policy
5 TAXATION
Analysis of tax charge in the year
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Lurant tax
- UK texation 1,014 1203 20 144
adjustments in respect of pnor years 7 (27) 7 (29}
—overseas taxation 1 436 {52) (5}
adusiment m respect of pnor years 165 9 165 g
1,187 1,621 140 119
Deferrad tax (hote 20)
- current year « (61) )] (0
- ovarseas taxation 46 {30} - -
87 93) {5) {17)
Total tax charge to the Statement of Comprehensive income 1,274 1,530 135 102
The tax for the year difers to the standard rate of corporation tax m the UK (28%) Any differences are explained below
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Profit betore taxation 4,129 5,215 3,917 384
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by rate of corporation tax in UK of 28% (2010 — 28%) 1,156 1,460 1,097 108
Effects of
Adjustment to tax in respect of prior years 172 (18} 172 {20)
Income not taxable - - (1,031) -
Difference on ¢verseas rates of tax 20 76 4 -
Impact of overseas losses not recognised 65 42 - -
Re-measurement of deferred tax
- change in UK tax rate to 26% (15) - (12) -
Other {124) (30) (95) 14
Total taxation 1,274 1,630 135 102

in addition to the change in rates of corporation tax to 26% from 1 April 2011 disclosed above a number of further changes to the UK corporation
tax system were announced i the March 2011 UK Budget Statement Legislahon to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 26% to 25% from
1 Apnl 2012 15 expected 10 be ncluded in the Finance Act 2011 Further reductions to the man rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per
annum to 23% by 1 Apnl 2014 These further changes have not been substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not included

n these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6 DIVIDENDS

Group and Company
2011 2030
£'000 £'000
S Op final paxd per share in relation to year ended 31 March 2010 (20710 — ntt paid 0 relation to year ended 31 March 2009) 1,897 -
1 7p mtenm paid per share in relation to year ended 31 March 2011 {2010 — nil paxd in relation {0 year ended 31 March 2010) 652 -
2,549 -

In additien, the directors are proposing a final dvidend i respect of the financial year ended 3t March 2011 of 3 3p per share which will absorb
£1,268,315 of shareholders’ funds to be paid on 19 August 2011 to shareholders who are on the register of members on 15 July 2011

7 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dwvding the earnings attnbutable to ordinary sharsholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held n the employee share trust {note 22) which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue I1s adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutve poteniial
ordinary shares that have satisfied the appropnate periormance cntena at 31 March 2011

Reconciliations of the eamings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below

2011 2010
Weighted Weghted
average average
number of  Per-share number of Per share
Earmings shares amount Eamings ghares amount
£'000 000's pence £ 000 000G s penoe
REPORTED
Basic EPS
Eamings atinbuiable to ordinary shareholders 2,855 38,071 750 3.685 37,772 976
Effect of dilutive securities
Options - 373 {oon - 602 {018)
Diluted EPS 2,855 38,444 743 3,685 38,374 960
UNDERLYING
Eamings atinbutable to shareholders 2,855 38,07 7.50 3.685 37,772 976
Amortisation of intangibles 390 - 102 395 - 104
Net foreign exchange translation adjustments net of tax (69) - {0 18) 71 - 019
Undertying basic EPS 3,176 38,071 8.34 4,151 37772 1099
Underlying diluted EPS 3,176 38,444 az2g 4,151 38,374 1082
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8 GOODWILL

GROUP £'000
cOosT

At 1 Apri 2010 13416
Exchange adustments {44)
At 31 March 2011 13,372

AGGREGATE IMPAIRMENT
At 1 Apni 2010 and 31 March 2011 -

Net book amount at 31 March 2011 13,372
GROUP £000
CosT

At 1 Apn! 2000 13624
Exchange adustments (208}
At 31 March 2010 13,416

AGGREGATE IMPAIRMENT
At 1 Apnt 2009 and 31 March 2010 -

Net book amount at 31 March 2010 13416

Annual impasment reviews perforrmed have not identified any imparment of goodwall

The goodwill has been allocated to cash-generating units and a summary of carmying amounts of goodwill by geographical segments {representing
cash-generating umts) at 31 March 201115 as follows

Rest of
UK USA Spamn lialy Eurcpe Total
GROUP £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
At 31 March 2011 3,992 8 3,990 4,807 575 13,372
At 31 March 2010 3,892 8 3,980 4,846 580 13,416

Goodwill allocated to the above cash-generating units of the Group has been measured based on synergies each geographical segment 15 expected
to gan from the business combination

The key assumptions in the value in use calculation

- Budgeted revenue growth was based on expected levels of actwity given resuits to date, together with growth based upon internal improvements,
marketing initiatrves, and expected economic and market conditions

- Budgeted operating profit was calculated based upon management's expectation of operating costs appropnate to the growing business

- The relative nisk adyusted {(or 'beta’} discount rates applied 1o reflect the nsk inherent in hobby based product compames In deterrmining the nsk
adjusted discount rate, management has applied an adjustment for nsk of such companies in the industry on average determinad using the betas
of comparable hobby based product companies

The forecasts are based on approved budgets for the year ending 31 March 2012 Subsequent cash flows have been increased 1n iine with histonc
local temtory gross domestic product For cash flows after 5 years, growth is no hugher than long-term growth rate for each country No reasonable
probable change In assumptons would give nse to any imparment The cash flows were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of around 12%
which management believes 15 approprate for all terntones due to a sumular nsk profile
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Brand  Customer Rent free

GROUP names hsts penod Total
£.000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COsT
At 1 Apnl 2010 5015 1,455 36 6 506
Exchange adjustments {14} 3) - {17)
At 31 March 2011 5,001 1,452 36 6489
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 Apnl 2010 a1 432 36 1,279
Charge for the year 246 144 - 390
Exchange adjustments - - - -
At 31 March 2011 1,057 576 36 1669
Net book amount at 31 March 2011 3,944 876 - 4,820
COSsT
At 1 Apnl 2009 5,083 1473 37 6,593
Exchange adjustments {68) 18) (1} (87}
At 31 March 2010 5015 1,455 36 6,506
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 Apnl 2009 574 293 37 904
Charge for the year 250 145 - 395
Exchange adustments {13} (6) (1) 20}
At 31 March 2010 811 432 36 1,279
Net book amount at 31 March 2010 4,204 1,023 - 5227
Net book amount at 31 March 2009 4,509 1,180 - 5689

All amortisation charges in the year have been charged through other operating expenses
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Frechold land  Ptant and Motor  Tools and

GROUP and buildings  equipment vehucles maouids Jotal

£000 £'000 £:000 £00M £'000
COST
At 1 Apnl 2010 3,033 4,925 418 40,602 48,978
Exchange adustments {4) {16} (1} (60} {81)
Addibons at cost 39 616 96 3755 4,506
Disposals - (7} {96) {175) {278)
At 31 March 2011 3.068 5518 M7 44,122 53,125
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apnl 2010 1152 3293 251 34 262 38958
Exchange adjustments - ©) - 3 @
Charge for the year 58 407 50 3545 4060
Disposals - 4! (66) (26} {99)
At 31 March 2011 1.210 3,688 235 37 784 4297
Net book amount at 31 March 2011 1,858 1,830 182 6,338 10,208

Freeholdland  Plant and Motor  Tools and

GROUP and buiidings  equipment wvehicles moulds Total

£ 000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000
COSsT
At 1 Apnl 2009 3,057 4,681 382 37 332 45452
Exchange adjustments (24) (38) (2 (254) (318)
Addions at cost - 204 a5 3686 4,025
Bisposals - {12) 1) (162) {181)
At 31 March 2010 3,033 4,925 418 40,602 48,978
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apnl 2009 1.100 2,945 223 30,661 34,929
Exchange adjustments @ 21 m (141) (167}
Charge for the year 56 380 36 3,904 4,376
Disposals - (11) ] (162) (180}
At 31 March 2010 1,152 3,293 251 34,262 389858
Net book amount at 31 March 2010 1,881 1,632 167 6,340 10,020
Net book amount at 31 March 2009 1,957 1,736 159 6,671 10,523
Freehold Jand amounting to £786,000 {2010 - £786,000) has not been depreciated
Assets held by the Group under finance leases have the following net book amount

2011 2010
£'000 £'000

Cost 167 167
Aggregate depreciation {46) (61)
Net book amount 121 106

Assets held by the Group under finance lsases are motor vehicles

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under IFRS 1 to use the valuation of certain land and bulldings at the date of transition to IFRS as
deemed cost All other assets are stated at cost

All amortisation charges in the year have been charged through other operating expenses
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Freehoid land ~ Plant and
COMPANY and buitings  equipment Total
£000 £ 000 £'000
COSsT
At 1 Apnt 2010 2,428 2432
Additions - -
At 31 March 2011 2,428 4 2,432
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apnl 2010 1,041 4 1.045
Charge for the year 43 - 43
At 31 March 2011 1,084 4 1,088
Net book amount at 31 March 2011 1,344 - 1,344
Freehold land  Plant and
COMPANY and bukdings  equipment Total
£ 000 { 000 £000
COST
At 1 Apnl 2009 2,428 4 2432
Additions - - -
At 31 March 2010 2428 4 2,432
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apn! 2009 996 3 999
Charge for the year 45 1 46
At 31 March 2010 1,041 4 1,045
Net book amount at 31 March 2010 1,387 - 1,387
Net book amount at 31 March 2009 1,432 1 1,433
The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases
11 [INVESTMENTS
COMPANY
The movements In the net book value of interests n subsidiary undertakings are as follows
Interests in Loans to
subsicary  subsidary
undertakings undertakings
at valuation at cost Total
€000 £ 000 £'000
At 1 Apnt 2010 28,108 5,650 33,758
Caprtal contnbution relating to share-based payment (1185) - (115)
Net increase i loans to subsidiary undertakings - 1529 1,529
At 31 March 2011 27,993 7,179 35,172
At 1 Apnl 2009 27 931 5,058 32,989
Capital contnbution relating 1o share-based payment 177 - 177
Net increase n loans to subskdiary undertakings - 592 592
At 31 March 2010 28,108 5,650 33.758

Interest was charged on loans to subsidiary undertakings at Sterling 3-month Uibor + 3 6%
Loans are unsecured and exceed five years maturty
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PRINCIPAL GROUP SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Details of the pancipal subsidiary undertakings of the Company wihich are included in the consolidated financial statements are set out below Homby
Hobbies Limited, Homby Espafia S A. and Hornby ltaka s r | are engaged in the development design, sourcing and distnbution of models  Hornby
Amenca Inc , Homby France S A.S and Hornby Deutschland GmbH are distnbutors of models

Proportion of nomenal value
Country of incorporation Descnphion of shares held of issued shares held
Group Company
% %
Hornby Hobbies Limted Great Britain Ordinary shares 100 100
Hornby Amenca Inc USA Ordinary shares 100 100
Hornby Esparia S A Spain Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby tallasrl Italy Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby France SAS France Ordinary shares 100 100
Hornby Deutschland GmbH Germany Ordinary shares 100 100
12. INVENTORIES
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Raw maienals 270 287 - -
Work In progress 58 ag - -
Firushed goods 15,885 11,948 - -
16,213 12273 - -
13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
CURRENT
Trade recenvables 11,996 11 859 - -
Less prowvision for inparment of recavables {195) {284) - -
Trade recenvables - net 11,801 11575 - -
Other recevables 511 343 - -
Prepayments 1,336 1373 38 40
13,648 13,291 38 40

Concentrations of credit nsk with respect to trade recenvables are imited due to the Group's custorner base being large and unrelated Due to this,
management believes there is no further credit nsk prowision required in excess of the normal prowision for doubtful recewvables Credrt insurance
policies are in place n Homby Hobbies Limited, Homby Amenca Inc , Homby Espafia SA  Homby lahka sri, Homby France SAS and Homby
Deutschland GmbH covenng trade recenvables at 31 March 2011 to the value of £9 2 mulkon (2010 - £5 5 million)

Gruoss trade recenvables can be analysed as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £ 000

Fully performing 10,288 10,250
Past due 1,480 1,263
Impared 228 346
Trade recevables 11,996 11,859
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As of 31 March 2011, trade recetvables of £1,480,000 (2010 - £1,263,000) wers past due but not impared Thesa relate to a number of independent

customers for whom there 1s no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these trade recewvables s as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

1-120 days 1,412 1,135
> 120 days 68 128
1,480 1,263

As of 31 March 201 1, trade recevablas of £228,000 (2010 - £346,000) were imparred and prowded for The amount of prowision was £195 000 (2010

- £284,000) as of 31 March 2011

Sgnificant financial difficulties of the recemvable, probability that the recewvable will enter bankruptcy or financial redrganisation are considered indications

that the trade recevable s impared

The ageing of these recevables I1s as follows

2011 20
£'000 £000
1 -120 days 12 S0
> 120 days 216 256
228 346
Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade recevables are as follows
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
At 1 Apnl 284 338
Provision for recewvables impairment 52 a5
Recewvables wnitten off dunng the year as uncollectible {138) {139)
Exchange adjustments 3 {10)
At 31 March 195 284
The charge relating to the increase i provision has been included In “administrative expenses’ In the Statement of Comprehensive Income
The carmang amounts of the Group and Company trade and other recevables are denominated in the following currencies
Group Company
201 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
Steriing 7.875 7,862 38 40
Euro 5113 4,780 - -
US dollar 512 536 - -
HK dollar 148 113 - -
13,648 13,231 38 a0
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,952 8,998 1" 45
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1S TRADE AND CTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
CURRENT
Trade payables 6,590 5246 - -
Cther taxes and social secunty 1,018 1,359 18 10
Cther payables 2,127 1940 - -
Accruals 1,524 1818 114 298
11,259 10363 132 308
16 PROVISIONS
Group Company
2011 2010 201 210
£000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Sales retums
At 1 Apnl 391 538 - -
Charged to Statement of
Comprehensive Income revenue 933 927 - -
Utlised in ysar @11) (1,074) - -
At 31 March 413 33 - -

Prowvision 1s made for future sales returns based on histoncal trends The provision is expected to be utiised within one year from the balance sheet

date

17 CURRENT TAX ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £ 000 €000 £000
Cuirent tax assets
Corporation tax recoverable - Overseas 282 175 130 141
Current tax habilthies
UK Corporation tax labilty 512 693 -
Overseas Corporation tax hiability 52 327 - 144
564 1,020 144
18 BORROWINGS
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Bank overdrafts 555 19 - -
Bank lcan 10,479 12,033 - -
Finance leases 128 113 - -
Loan from subsidiary undertakings - - 5,331 5,373
11,162 12,265 5,331 5,373
Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement wittun 12 months 3,136 1,718 - -
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 8,026 10,547 5,331 5373
11,162 12 265 5,331 5373

The Group complied with all loan covenants dunng the year
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Analysis of bomowings by currency

Sterling Euros Total
Group £ 000 £ 000 £°000
31 March 2011
Bank overdrafis - 555 555
Bank loan 10 000 479 10,479
Finance leases 128 - 128

10,128 1,034 11,162

31 March 2010

Bank overdrafts - 119 119
Bank loan 11,500 533 12,033
Finance leases 113 - 13

11,613 652 12,265

The other prncipal features of the Group s borrowings are as follows

At 31 March 2011 the Group had a revolving credit facilty of £10 mulhion expinng July 2012 and a 5 year fixed term loan agreement of £12 milkon with
repayments scheduled to July 2014 (£10 miflon as at 31 March 2011} The future interest rates of these facilities are Libor + 2 B5% for the revolving
credit faciity and Libor + 3 6% for the fixed term loan

The average effective interest rate on bank overdrafts approxmated to 3 85% {2010 - 2 35%) per annumn and 15 deterrmined based on 1 0% above 3
months Libor

Undrawn botrrowing faciltties

At 31 March 2011, the Group had available £10 4 milion {2010 - £10 3 millon) of undrawn committed bormowing faciities in respsct of which all
conditions precedent had been met  in addition, European subsidianes had avadlable £©1 4 million {2010 - £3 7 mullion) of undrawn import credit ine
facilties that could be obtaned with secunty being given against trade recevables

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's policies and strategies in relation to nsk and financial nstruments are detaled i note 1

Assets Liabiities
201 2010 2011 2010
Group £'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Carrying vaiues of denvative finangial mstruments
Foreign exchange collar - - (2,552) (2,774)
Forward foreign currency contracts — cash flow hedges a3 750 {299} {51}
interest rate swap - cash flow hedge - - {342} 517)
93 750 {3,193) (3,342)

The hedged forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at vanous dates dunng the next 12 months Gans and
losses recognised in reserves on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31 March 2011 are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity in
the penod or penods dunng which the hedged forecast transaction affects the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which 1s within 12 months from
the balance sheet date

At 31 March 2011 outstanding forward currency contracts were as follows

2011 2010
000's 000's
Hong Kong $ 167,676 145,986
uss 4,473 5,180
Euros 908 871

The notional pnncipal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contract at 31 March 2011 was £4 O milion (2010 - £4 6 midlion} At 31 March
2011, the interest rate swap fixes the interest rate on £4 0 million of the bank loan disclosed in note 18 o 6 22% The loss recognised in the interest
rate swap Included i the hedging reserve as of 31 March 2011 will be continucusly released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income until the
maturty of the swap The £6 0 million (2010 ~ £6 9 mifton) remainder of the bank loan disclosed in note 18 incurs interest based on 3-month Libor
established quarterty In advance
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The total far value above for forward foreign currency contracis and the interest rate swap compnses £637 000 labiliy (2010 - £182,000 asset) of
which £576,000 lability (2010 - £168,000 asset) has been effectively hedged at 31 March 2011 and therefore charged 1o reserves In accordance
with IAS 39 The kabiity balance of £61,000 (2010 - £14,000 asset) was the ineffective hedged portion and was included within operating expenses

In accordance with AS 39, the Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded denvatives that are required to be separately accounted for ff they do
not meet certain requirements set out in the standard No embedded denvatives have been identified

Al denvative financial investiments are Leve! 2 in the Far Value Hierarchy

Fair values of non-dervative financial assets and Liabtlities

For the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, there 1s no difference between the camying amount and fair value of each of
the following classes of financial assets and habilities principally due to ther short matunty investments, trade and other recervables, cash at bank and

in hand, trade and other payables and current borrowings Bank deposits attract interest within O 5% of the ruling market rate There I1s no significant
difference between the far value and camying amount of non-current borrowings as the impact of discounting 1s not significant

The Company has no denvative financial instrumenits

Matunity of non-current financial liabilties

GROUP
Bank Finance 2011
loan leasas Total
£ 000 £ 000 £'000
Between one and two years (note 18) 3,054 62 3,116
Between two and five years {note 18} 4,674 37 4,711
More than five years (note 18) 199 - 199
7.927 99 8,026
Bark Finance 2010
loan leases Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Between one and two years {note 18) 2.554 18 2,572
Between two and five years {note 18) 7.670 48 7718
Mora than five years (note 18) 257 - 257
10 481 66 10547
2011 2010
Debt Dabt
COMPANY £'000 £'000
More than five years (note 18) 5,331 5373
The mintmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
2011 2010
GROUP £'000 £000
Not later than one year 34 52
Later than one year but not more than five 101 68
135 120
Future finance charges on finance leases {7 {7
Present value of finance lease labiities 128 113
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Financial Instruments

Interest rate sensttivity
The Group (s exposed to interest rate nsk as the Group borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates The exposure 1o these borrowings vanes
dunng the year due to the seasonal nature of cash flows relating to sates

In order to measure nsk floating rate borrowsngs and the expected interest cost 1s forecast on a monthly basis and compared to budget using
management’s expectations of a reasonably possible change in interest rates

The effect on both income and equity based on exposure to borrowings at the balance sheet date for a 1% ncrease n interest rates 1s £110 000
{2010 - £117,000), before tax A 1% fall in interest rates gve the same but opposite effect

1% increase in interest rates
Income and Equity

Sensitivity
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Borrowings 110 117

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group is prmarly exposed to US Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and the Eure The following table detalls how the Group’s income and equity would
increase on a before tax basis gven a 10% revaluation in the respective currencies aganst Sterling and in accordance with IFRS 7 all other vanables
remamning constant A 10% devaluahon in the value of Sterling would have the oppostite effect

The 10% change represents a reasonably possible change in the specified fareign exchange rates in relation to Sterling

income and Equity
Sensitivity
201 200
£'000 £ 000
US and HK dollars 768 Gi1
Euros 128 343
896 1,254

Capital nsk management
The Group's ohjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability {0 continue as a gong concem i order to provide returns for
sharehalders and benefits for ather stakeholders and to mantain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of captal

In order to mantan or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dwvidends paid 1o shareholders, return capital 1o shareholders
1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the geanng ratio The ratio 1s calculated as net debt dvided by totai capital Net debt is caleutated as total
borrowings as shown In the consolidated balance sheet less cash and cash equivalents Total capital I1s calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance
sheet plus net debt

20114 2010

£'000 £000
Total borrowings {note 18) 11,162 12,265
Less
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 14} {4,952} (8.998)
Net Debt 6,210 3,267
Total Equity 36,769 365628
Total Caprtal 42,979 38,895
Gearmng 14% 8%
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20 DEFERRED TAX

Deterred tax 1s calcuated in full on temporary differences under the kability method using a tax rate of 26% (2010 ~ 28%)

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as shown below

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2040

£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
At 1 Apni 141 234 166 183
Charga/{credit) to Statement of Comprehenswive Income {note 5)
- onigination and reversal of temporary differences 87 91) {3) {19}
Exchange adjustments - {2) - 2
At 31 March 228 141 161 166

Deferred tax assats have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving nse 1o deferred tax assets because it 15

probable that those assets will be recovered

No deferred tax 13 provided for tax hatilities which would anse on the distnbution of profits retained by overseas subsidianes because there 1s currently

no infention that such prefits will be remitted

The movements i deferred tax assets and kabilities dunng the year are shown below

Deterrad tax assets and llabities are only ofiset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset

Group Company

Accelerated Accelerated

capual capital
Revaluation  allowances Other Total Revaluation aflowances Total
Deferred tax habilites £ 000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
At 1 Apnl 2010 183 84 14 281 183 13 196
{Credtt charge) to Statement of Comprehensive Income {17 51 22 56 07 @ (19)
At 31 March 2011 166 135 36 337 166 11 177

At 1 Apnt 2008 188 a1 22 30 188 13 201

{Credit} to Statement of Comprehensive Income 5) (7} 8) {20 5) - (5)
At 31 March 2010 183 84 14 281 183 13 196

Of the total deferred tax liability of £337,000, £5,000 was due within one year for the Group (2010 - £5,000) and £5,000 for the Company (2010 —

£5,000)
Group Company
Short term Short-term
mncentive  Acquastion mcentve
pan  ntangibles Other Total plan
Deferred tax assets £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
GROUP
At 1 Apni 2010 {68) (48) 24) (140) {30)
Charge/{credtt) to Statement of Comprehensive Income 33 (26) 24 31 14
At 31 March 2011 (35} {74) - {109} {16)
At 1 Apni 2009 {49 - (22) {67} (18}
(Credit} to Statement of Comprehensive Income 23) {48) (2) {73 (12)
At 31 March 2010 {68) (48) (24) (140) (30}
Net deferred tax habiity
At 31 March 2011 228 161
At 31 March 2010 141 166
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The deferred tax hability ansing on the revaluation of freehold land and buldings in 1986 cannot be offset aganst deferred tax assets Therefore, the
deferred tax asset and deferred tax hability at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010 have been recognised separately

2011 2010
Not Not
GROUP Racogmsed recogrised Recogresed  recognsed
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
Deferred tax compnses
Accelerated capiial allowances 135 - 84 -
Other temporary differences 57 - 67 -
Overseas taxation 36 - 10 -
Deferred tax hability 228 - 141 -
2011 2010
Not Neot
COMPANY Recognised recogrused Recognised  recognised
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Deferred tax compnses
Accelgrated capital allowances 11 - 13 -
Other timuing differences 150 - 153 -
Deferred tax hability 161 - 166 -
21 SHARE CAPITAL
GROUP AND COMPANY
Allotted and fully paid
2011 2010
Number of Number of
Ordinary shares of 1p each shares £000 shares £000
At 1 Apnl 38,064,100 381 37 989,100 380
Aliotted under share option schemes 400,000 4 75,000 1
At 31 March 38,464,100 385 38,064,100 381

At 31 March 2011 options granted under the Company's share option schemes were outstanding as follows

Exercise
Date granted Number of options pnce  Penod of option
2011 2010
28 March 2002 600,000 1,000,000 76 8p March 2005 ~ March 2012
19 June 2002 547,500 547,500 834p June 2005 - June 2012
09 June 2005 400,000 400,000 201 Op  June 2008 — June 2012
14 Sepiember 2007 - 228967 2520p Sept 2010 — Sept 2017

1,547,500 2 176,467

The total number of options outstanding as at the date of this document represent approximately 4 0% {2010 ~ 5 7%) of the ssued share capital of
the Company

If Resolution 12 15 passed a! the Annuat General Meeting and the Company were 1o exercise the full authonty to buy-back approxamately 10% of the
1issued ordinary shares of the Comparny, such options would represent 4 5% (2010 — 6 49%) of the issued share capital of the Company

22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Homby Pic operates three share-based plans - Share Option Scherme ('SOS"), Short Term Incentive Plan ('STIP') and Performance Share Plan (PSP)

S80S awards
The SOS awards are a reward of share options to executive directors and senior management that vest after 3 years and must be exercised n a 4 or
7 year exercise window

The awards are subject to a performance measure of Profits before Interest and Tax {('PBIT ) or Profit before Tax {'PBT') as disclosed by the Group's
accounts for any of the years ended 31 March 2006 31 March 2007, 31 March 2008, 31 March 2009 or 31 March 2010 excluding (i} any profit or loss
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in relation to property transactions, (i} any restructunng and abortive due dilgence costs and (iti) any profits or losses ans:ing from businesses acquired
by the Group after the date of grant of the Option Some awards are subject to achieving a PBIT that s equal to or greater than £8 milion, or to PBT
being equal to or greater than £9 million or aggregate PBY for 3 years ending 31 March 2008, 2009 and 2010 being equal to or greater than £32 7
milkon The awards are equity settled

Actnnty relating to share options for the year ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010 was as follows

2011 20170
Weighted Weighted
averags average
eaxercise exerase
Number pnce Number pnce
QOutstanding at 1 Apnil 2,176,467 1197p 2,591,005 133 1p
Exercised {400,000 76 8p (75,000) 834p
Lapsed {228,967) 2520p (339,538) 230 2p
Qutstanding at 31 March 1,547,500 111.2p 2,176,467 1197p

Options were exercised on 24 November 2010 The weighted average share price dunng the year was 108 Op (2010 - 128 3p)

The following table summanses information relating to the number of shares under option (SOS awards) and those which were exercisable at
31 March 2011

Exerctsable

waetghted

average

Waeighted 8xXercisa

average Options Options prnice for

remaning exercisable exercisable options

Total shares  contractual at 31 March at 31 March exercisable

under option ife 2011 2010 at 31 March

Range of exercise pnces Nurnber Months Number Number 2011
£0 70 - £0 80 600,000 12 600,000 1,000,000 76 Bp
£0 80 -£080 547,500 15 547,500 547,500 834p
£200-£210 400,000 15 400,000 400,000 201 0p
1 547,500 1,547,500 1,947,500 1M1 2p

STIP awards
The STIP 1s a reward of shares to executive directors and sencr management

Vesting of the awards occurs in equal amounis on the second, third and fourth anneversanes of the award date provided that the partiicipant remains
empioyed by the Group These awards are not subject to any performance conditions The awards are egurty settled

Performance Share Plan
All Performance Share Plan (PSP} awards outstanding at 31 March 2011 vest only f performance conditions are met Awards granted under the PSP
must be exercised within one year of the relevant award vesting date

The Group operates the PSP for executve directors and senior executives Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of a nil-pnced option,
and are satisfied using market-purchased shares The awards vest n full or in part dependent on the satisfaction of specified performance targets
50% of the award vests dependent on TSR performance over a three year performance penod, relative to the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap
tindex {exciuding investment trusts) from the time of grant, and the remaining 50% vests dependent on performance against eamings per share targets

All plans are subject to continued employment To the extent that such shares in the above plans are awarded to employees below farr value, a charge
calcutated in accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payment’ 1s included within other operating expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
This charge for the Group amounted to £51.000 in the year ended 31 March 2011 {2010 - £289,000) and the Company £166 000 in the year ended
31 March 2011 (2010 - £112,000)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following table summanses the key assumptions used for grants dunng the year

201 2010

805 5TIP PSP 50s STIP PSe
Faur value {p} - - 102 5p - - 1101p
Options pncing medel used - - Stochastic - — Stochastic
Shara pnce at grant date {p) - - 139 5p - - 1363p
Exercise pnce (p) - - n/a - - n/a
Expected volatibty (%) - - 47 0% - - 44 0%
Risk-fres rate (%) - - n/a - - na
Expected option term {years) - - 3 - - 3
Expected dmdends {per year %} - - 0% - - 0%

Assumptions for TSR component only

Assumptions on expected volatility and expected option term have been made on the basis of histoncal data, wherever available, for the penod
corresponding with the vesting period of the option  Best estimates have been used where histoncal data Is not available in this respect

GROUP - SHORT TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

2011 2010

£'000 £000

At 1 Apnil 326 497
Shares acquired iIn Company - -
Shares vested (146) (71)
At 31 March 180 326

Detaills of the Short Term incentve Plan are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 20 to 25
The Employee Benefit Trust acquired no ordinary shares in the year

On 18 June 2010, the final thurd of the 2006 allocation (20,834 ordinary shares) and the first third of the 2008 allocation (57 765 ordinary shares) were
vested

At 31 March 2011, a total of 115 532 {2010 - 194,131) ordinary shares are held by the Trust and aflotied to the directors and senior management
under the plan with a nomnal value of £1,155 {2010 — £1,941) and a market value of £124,775 (2010 - £245 080) The costs of the plan are borne by
Hornby Pic The Trust has waved its nght 1o dvidends

23 EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Staff costs for the Group dunng the year
Wages and salaries 7,797 7735 613 674
Share-based payments {note 22) 51 289 166 112
Socual secunty costs 1,047 1135 90 103
Other pension costs {note 24) 723 682 59 58
Redundancy and compensation for loss of office 25 34 - -
9,643 9,875 928 947
Average monthly number of people (ncluding executive drrectors) employed by the Group
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Number Number Number Number
Operations 104 99 1 -
Sales, marketing and distnbuton 106 103 1 1
Admurustrahion 39 37 3 3
249 239 5 4
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Key management compensation

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2030
£'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Salanes and short-term benefits 1,893 2091 488 600
Share-based payments 100 276 166 112
Post-employment benefits 199 192 59 58
2,192 2,559 713 770

Key management compnse the indmduals involved in major strategic decision making and includes all Group and subsidiary drectors

A detaled numencal analysis of directors’ remuneration and share options showing the highest pawd director, number of directors accruing benefit
under money purchase pension schemes and gains realised on the exercise of share options 1S included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 20 to 25 and forms part of these financial statements

24 PENSION COMMITMENTS
The Group operates a defined contnbution pension scheme by way of a Stakeholder Group Personal Pension Plan set up through the Frnends
Prowident Insurance Group

Alexander Forbes Financial Services Limited 1s appointed as Independent Financial Adwviser to work in barson with the Company
The level of contnbutions to the Group Personal Pension Plan for current members 1s fixed by the Company

The Group pension cost for the year was £723,000 (2010 - £682,000) representing the actual contnbutions payable in the year and certan scheme
admnusiration costs The Company pension cost for the year was £59,000 (2010 - £58,000)

25 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Caprtal Commitments

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
At 31 March commitments were
Contracted for but not prowded for 1,439 1,245

The Company does not have any capital commitments

The commements refate to the acguisition of property plant and equipment

Contingent Liabilities

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are, from time to time, parbes to legal proceedings and clams, which anse in the ordinary course of
business The directors do not anticipate that the outcome of these proceedings and clams, either indmidually or In aggregate, will have a matenal
adverse effect upon the Group’s financial position

26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The total of {uture minimurm lease payments in respect of non-cancellable plant and motor vehicle operating laases falling due are as {oliows

2011 2010

£000 £000

Not later than one year 489 505
Later than one year but not more than five years 967 639
More than five years 106 -
1,562 1,144

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

There were no contracts with the Company or any of s subsidianes existing dunng or at the end of the financial year in which a drector of the
Company was matenally interested The Group has taken advaniage of the exemption avalable under 1AS 24 ‘Related party disclosures’ not to
disclose transactions and balances between Group entsties that have been elminated on consolidation

The Company recenved management fees from subsidhanes of ££1,251,000 (2010 - £1,351,000), mterest of £174 000 {2010 - £228,000) and dwvdends
from subsdianes of £3,681,000 (2010 — £nf)

HORNBY PLC Annual Report & Accounts 61




Notice of Annual General Meeting

If you have sold or otherwse transferred all of your ordinary shares in Hornby Plc please forward this document as soon as possible to the purchaser or
transferee or to the stockbroker bank or other agent through or to whom the sale or transfer was effected for transrmission to the purchaser or transferee of
your ordinary shares

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice 15 hereby given that the thistieth Annual General Meeting of Hornby Plc (the “Company™ wili be held at the offices of Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP
Adelaide House, London Bridge London EC4R 9HA on Monday 1 August 20112t 1100 a m for the following purposes

To consider and f thought fit to pass the following resolutions of which numbers 1to 10 will be proposed as ardiary resolutions and numbers 11 and 12 as
special resolutions

ORDINARY RESCLUTIONS

1

~ ¢ o M

o

To recewe and adopt the Company s Annual Report 2nd Accounts for the financtal year ended 31 March 2011 1ogether with the Report of the Directors
and Auditors

To approve the Directors Remuneration Report as set out on pages 20 1o 25 of the Company s Annual Report and Accounts, for the financial year ended
31 March 201

To declare & final dwidend of 3 3 pence per ordinary share of 1 pence each in the capital of the Company ("Ordinary Shares™) payable to holders of
Ordinary Shares on the register at the close of business on 15 July 2011

To re-elect N A Johnson as a Director
To re-elect F Mariin, who retiras by rotation, as a Director
Tore-elect N M Carrington who retires by rotation as a Director

To re-appomnt PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the retinng auditors as auditors of the Company to hold office from conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting to the conclusion of the next meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company

To authorise the Directors to agree the audners’ remuneration

That, in accerdance with section 366 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act ) the Company and all cormpanies that are its subsiciaries at any time during
the period for which this resolution has effect be authonsed to

(a) make political donations to political parties and/or independent election candidates not exceeding £10 000 1n total
(b) make political donations ta political organisa*ions other than political parties, not exceeding £10,000 in total and
(¢} incur political expenditure not exceeding £10 000 in total,

praovided that the aggregate amount of any such donations and expenditure shall not exceed £15 000 during the period beginning with the date of the
passing of this resolution and encing on the date of the Compeany s next Annual General Meeting

For the purpose of this reselution, the terms palitical donatrons ‘political expenditure “independent election candidates 'political parties and “political
organisations’ shall have the meaning given to them by Part 14 of the Act

THAT n place of the equiva'ent authonty given to the Directors at the last Annual Genera! Meeting (but without prejudice to the cantinuing authority
of the Directors to allot shares pursuant to an offer or agreement made by the Company before the expiry of the authonty pursuant to which such
offer or agreement was made) the Directors be generally and uncanditienally authenised in accordance with section 551 of the Act to allot shares in
the Company or grant nights to subscribe for or {0 convert any security into shares in the Company up to a maximum aggregate norminal amount of
£126 000 provided that this authonty shall expire on 31 July 2016 but 50 that the Company may betore the expiry of such period, make an offer or
agreement which would ar might require shares to be allotted or nghts to subscribe for or convert securities into shares to be granted after the expiry of
such period and the Directors may allot shares or grant rights to subscribe for or convert secunties into shares pursuant to such an offer or agreement
as ¢ this authority had not expired
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

"

THAT subject to and conditional on the passing of resalution 10 the Directors be empowered pursuant to section 570 of the Act to 2llot equity
secunties (within the meamng of section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authorty conferred by resolution 10 as iIf sectian S65(1) of the Act did
not 2pply to any such allotment provided that this power shall be imited to the altotment of equity securiiies

(3) inconnection with an offer of such secunties by way of rights 1ssue and
(b} otherwise than pursuant to resolution 10 above up to an aggregate norminal amount of £19 000

And that this authority shall expire at the conclusion of the Company s next Annual General Meeting following the daie of the passing of the resolution
save that the Company may before such expiry make an olfer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such
expiry and the Directors may allot equity secunities in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the power had not expired

This power applies in relation 1o a sale of treasury shares as f all references in this resolution to an allotment included any such sale and i the first
paragraph of the resolution the words “pursuant Lo the authority conferred by resolution 10 were omitted i relation to such sale

Inthis resotution *rights 1ssue means an offer of equity secunties open for acceptance for a penod fixed by the Directors to holders of Ordinary Shares in
the capital of the Company on the register on a record date fixed by the Directors in proportion as nearly as may be to the respective numbers of Ordinary
Shares held by them but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with any treasury
shares fractional entitlements or legal or practical 1ssues arising under the laws of or the requirements of any recogmsed regulatory body or any stock
exchange in any territory or any other matter

THAT subject to and in accardance with Article 9 of the Company s articles of asseciation the Company be generally and unconditionally authorsed
to make market purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary Shares on such terms as the Directors think fit and where
such shares are held as treasury shares the Company may use them for the purposes set out in section 727 of the Act including for the purpose of its
employce share schemes provided that

(a) the maximum number of Ordinary Shares hereby authorised to be purchased 1s 3 800 000 being an amount equal to approximately 10% of the
Ordinary Shares in 1ssue as at 2 June 2011 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this notice),

(b} the minimum price, exclusive of any expenses, which may be paid for an Ordinary Share 15 1 pence
(c) the maximum price exclusive of any expenses which may be pad for each Ordinary Share 1s an amount equal fo the higher of

{1} 105 per cent of the average of the middle market quotations for an Ordinary Share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official
List for the five business days tmmediately preceding the day on which the Ordinary Share 1s contracted to be purchased, and

{u) the amount stipulated by Articte 5(1) of the Buy-back and Stabidisation Regulation 2003, and

{d) the authonty hereby conferred shail, unless previously revoked or vaned expire at the conclusion of the Company s next Annual General Meeting
following the date of the passing of the resclution, or, if earbier on the expiry of 18 months from the date of the passing of the resolution (except
in refation to the purchase of Ordinary Shares the contract for which was concluded before the expiry of this authonity and which will or may be
executed wholly or partly after such expiry)

By order of the Board

John Stansfield

Company Secretary

Dated 3 June 2011

Registered office, Westwood Margate Kent CT9 4JX
Registered in England and Wales with number 01547390
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

MNOTES

1

10

1l

12

This notice 1s being sent to all members and to any person nominated by a member of the Company under section 146 of the Cormpanies Act 2006 to
enjoy information nghts

Onty holders of Ordinary Shares, or therr duly appointed representatives are entitled to attend vole and speak at the AGM A mernber so entitled may
appoint {a) proxy/(ies) who need not be {a) member(s), to attend speak and vote on fus/her behalf A member may appoint more than one proxy
provided that each proxy 15 appointed to exercise the nghts attached to 2 different share or shares held by him/her A Proxy Form is enclosed with this
Notice and instructions for its completion are set out on the form

Proxies may only be appointed by completing and returming the form of proxy enclosed with this Notice to the Company’s Registrars Capita Regustrars
Limited PXS, 34 Beckenham Road Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU

To be vahid a proxy appointment and any power of attorney or other authonty, if any under which 1t 1s signed or a duly certified copy of such power of
attorney must reach the ofiice of the Company s Registrars not less than 48 hours {excluding any part of a day which s not a working day) before the
time fixed for the AGM or any adjournment thereof Therefare, the form of proxy must be received by the Company s Registrars by 11am on 28 July
201

Return of the form of proxy will not preclude a member from astending the AGM and voting in persan A vote withheld option 1s provided on the form
of proxy to enable you to instruct your proxy to abstain on any particular resolution However 1t should be roted that a “vote withheld s not 2 vole in
law ang will not be counted in the calcutation of the proportion of votes ‘For” and “Against” a resolutron  If you select "Discretionary  or fail to select any
of the aptions your proxy can vote as he or she chooses or can decide not to vole  Your proxy can also do this on a2ny other resolution that 1s put to the
AGM

The night to appoint 2 proxy does not apply to persons whose shares are held on their behalf by another person and who have been nominated toreceive
cormmunications from the Company in accordance with section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 ( nominated persons’) Nominated persons may have
a night under an agreement with the registered shareholder who hold shares on their behat!f to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) 25 a
proxy Aliernatively, if norminated persons do not have such a night or do not wish to exercise it they may have a night under such an agreement to give
instructions to the person holding the shares as to the exercise of voting rights

T'he Company pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 specifies that only those shareholders on the register of
members of the Company as at 11am on 28 July 2011 (or (f the AGM 1s adjourned shareholde:s on the register of members not later than 48 hours
(excluding any part of a day which 1s not a working day) before the time fixed for the adjourned meeting) are entitled to attend and/or vote at the AGM
{or any adjournment thereof) in respect of the number of shares registered in ther name at that time  Subsequent changes to the regrster of secunities
shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend and voie at the AGM (or eny adjournment thereof)

Any corporation which 15 2 member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a member
provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares

Capies of contracts of service and letters of appontment between the Directors and the Company will be available for inspection at the registered offices
of the Company and the offices of Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP at Adelaide House London Bridge, EC4R 9HA dunng normal business hours from the
datie of this Notice untif the conciusion of the AGM 2nd at the place of the AGM for 2t least 15 munutes prior to the AGM until its conclusion

In order 1o facilitate voting by corporate representatives at the AGM arrangements will be put in place at the meeting so that (1) «f a corporate member
has appointed the Chairman of the meeting as its corporate representative with instructions o vote on & poll in accordance with the directions of all
of the other corporate representatives for that member 2t the meeting then on a poll those corparate representatives will give voting directions to the
Chairman and the Charman will voie (or withhold 2 vote) as corporate representative in accordance with those directions, and (u} if more than one
corporate representative for the same corporate member attends the meeting but the corporate member has not appointed the Chairman of the meeting
as its corporate representative, a designated corporate representative will be nominated, irom those corporate representatives who sttend who will vote
on a poll and the other corporate representatives will give voting drections to that designated corporate representative Corporate members are referred
10 the guidance 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Secretanies and Admunistrators on proxies and corporate representatives - http.//www icsa org
uk/- for further details of this procedure  The guidance includes a sample form of representation letter f the Chairman 1s being appointed as described
n (1) above

Under section 527 Companies Act 2006 members meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have the right to require the Company
1o publish on 2 website a statement setting out any matter relating to (1) the audit of the Company's accounts (including the auditor s report and the
conduct of the audit) that are to be aid before the AGM, or (11} any circumstances connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing o hold office since
the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reperts were laid in accordance with section 437 Companies Act 2006 The Company may not
require the members requesting any such website publication to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 Companies Act 2006 Where
the Company 1s required to place 2 statement on 2 website under section 527 Companies Act 2006, 1t must forward the statement to the Company s
auditor not later than the time when 1t makes the statement available on the website  The business which may be dealt with at the AGM includes any
staternent that the Company has been required under section 527 Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

A copy of this Notice, and other information regarding the meeting, as required by section 311A Companies Act 2006 s available from
www hornby com  You may not use any electronic address proveded 1n this Natice or in any related documents (including the form of proxy) to
communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated
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Any member attending the meeting has the nght to ask questions  The Company must cause to be answered any such question relating to the business
being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if (2) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve
the disclosure of confidential information (b) the answer has already been given on 2 website in the form of an answer to a question, or {¢) it 1s
undesirzble in the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered

As at 2 June 2011 {being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Notice), the Company's 1ssued share capital consists of 38 464 100
oidinary shares carrying one vole each Therefore, the total voiing nights in the Company as 2t 3 June 2011 are 38 464,100

Under section 338 and section 338A of the Companies Act 2006 shareholders mecting the threshald requirements in those sections have the night to
require the Cornpany (1) {o give to the shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the meeting, notice of a resolution which may properly
be moved and 1s intended to be moved at the meeting and/or (1) to include in the busmess to be dealt with 2t the meeting any matter (other than a
proposed resolution) which may be properly included in such business A resolution may be properly moved or a matter may be properly included in
the business of the meeting unless (a) (in the case of a resclution only) it would if passed be ineffective (whether by reasons of inconsistency with
any enactment of the Company s constitution or otherwise) (b} it i1s defamatory of any person or (¢) it 15 involous or vexatious Such a request may
be in hard copy form or in electronic farm, must identify the resolution of which notice 1s to be given or the matter to be included in the business of the
meeting, must be authonsed by the persan or persons making it must be receved by the Company not later than the 19 June 2011 being the date six
clear weeks before the meeting, and (in the case of a matter to be included in the business of the meeting only} must be accompanied by a statement
setting out the grounds for the request
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Five Year Summary

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover 63,372 63,863 60,803 54,949 46,223
Profit on ordinary activiies before taxation 4,129 5215 6,121 9,017 7,662
Taxation {1,274) (1,530} (1,909} (2940) (2,149
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 2855 3685 4,212 6,077 5513
Assets employed
Non-current assets 28,509 28,803 29,903 20,812 19,406
Net current assets 16,623 18653 9,133 11,037 8,850
Non-current borrowings (8,026) (10,547} (7,181) {41) (53)
Deferred tax habilities (337} (281} (301) {346) {358}
Net assets 36,769 36,628 31,554 31,462 27845
Total capital employed 36,769 36,628 31,554 31,462 27,845
Earnings per share
- basic 7.5p 98p 112p 162p 146p
— dituted 7.4p 96p 110p 15 6p 14 1p
Dividend per share (net) 50p 50p 27p 85p 81p
Net assets per share 957p 962p 831p 828p 736p

SHAREHOLDERS'
INFORMATION
SERVICE

HORNBY WELCOMES CONTACT
WITH ITS SHAREHOLDERS
IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS OR
ENQUIRIES ABOUT THE GROUP OR
ITS PRODUCTS, PLEASE CONTACT

A} MORRIS, FINANCE DIRECTOR
HORNBY PLC
WESTWOQD

MARGATE
KENT CT9 4JX
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